
 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

TOWN OF PAONIA 
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 24, 2020 

VIRTUAL TOWN BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

6:30 PM 
 

Please click the link below to join the webinar: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89279791180 

Or iPhone one-tap :  

US: +16699009128,,89279791180# or +12532158782,,89279791180#  

Or Telephone: 

Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):  

US: +1 669 900 9128 or +1 253 215 8782 or +1 346 248 7799 or +1 646 558 8656 or +1 301 715 8592 or +1 

312 626 6799  

Webinar ID: 892 7979 1180 

*9 to Raise/Lower Hand 
 

 

Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 

Announcements 
 COVID-19 - Review of Established Policies & Current Updates 

 Trustee Knutson - COGCC Update (Colorado Oil & Gas Conservation Commission) 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 
1. Visitors & Guests 

Staff Reports 
2. Administrator’s Report 

    Previous Visitors & Guests Follow-Up 

Public Works 

Police Report 

Attorney Report  

Disbursements 
3. Treasurer’s Report 

4. Disbursements 

Regular Business 
5. 2021 Budget Public Hearing 

6. Clark's End Minor Subdivision 

7. Charter Communication Franchise Agreement 

8. Ordinance 2020-10 - Regulation and Licensing of Marijuana Establishments 

9. 2020 Sanitary Survey Follow-up 

10. Town Attorney Contract 

11. Town Administrator Six-Month Review – Timeline 

Consent Agenda 
12. Regular Minutes: 

October 27, 2020 - Work Session 

October 27, 2020 

Special Minutes: 

November 3, 2020 – Work Session 

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89279791180


 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

Mayor’s Report 
13. Mayor’s Report 

Committee Reports 
14. Finance & Personnel 

Governmental Affairs & Public Safety 

Public Works-Utilities-Facilities 

Tree Board 

Adjournment 
15. Adjournment 

  

2



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

AS ADOPTED BY: 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 – Amended May 22, 2018 

 

I. RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

Section 1.  Schedule of Meetings.  Regular Board of Trustees meetings shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each 

month, except on legal holidays, or as re-scheduled or amended and posted on the agenda prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 

Section 2.  Officiating Officer.  The meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted by the Mayor or, in the Mayor’s 

absence, the Mayor Pro-Tem.  The Town Clerk or a designee of the Board shall record the minutes of the meetings. 

 

Section 3.  Time of Meetings.  Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall begin at 6:30 p.m. or as scheduled and posted on 

the agenda. Board Members shall be called to order by the Mayor.  The meetings shall open with the presiding officer leading 

the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  The Town Clerk shall then proceed to call the roll, note the absences and announce 

whether a quorum is present.  Regular Meetings are scheduled for three hours, and shall be adjourned at 9:30 p.m., unless a 

majority of the Board votes in the affirmative to extend the meeting, by a specific amount of time.  

 

Section 4. Schedule of Business.  If a quorum is present, the Board of Trustees shall proceed with the business before it, which 

shall be conducted in the following manner.  Note that all provided times are estimated:  

 

 (a) Roll Call - (5 minutes) 

 (b) Approval of Agenda - (5 minutes) 

 (c) Announcements (5 minutes) 

 (d) Recognition of Visitors and Guests (10 minutes) 

 (e) Consent Agenda including Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes (10 minutes) 

 (f) Mayor’s Report (10 minutes) 

 (g) Staff Reports: (15 minutes) 

  (1) Town Administrator’s Report 

  (2) Public Works Reports  

  (3) Police Report 

  (4) Treasurer Report 

      

 (h) Unfinished Business (45 minutes) 

 (i) New Business (45 minutes) 

 (j) Disbursements (15 minutes) 

 (k) Committee Reports (15 minutes) 

 (l) Adjournment 

 

  * This schedule of business is subject to change and amendment. 

  

Section 5. Priority and Order of Business. Questions relative to the priority of business and order shall be decided by the Mayor 

without debate, subject in all cases to an appeal to the Board of Trustees.  

 

Section 6.  Conduct of Board Members.   Town Board Members shall treat other Board Members and the public in a civil and 

polite manner and shall comply with the Standards of Conduct for Elected Officials of the Town.  Board Members shall address 

Town Staff and the Mayor by his/her title, other Board Members by the title of Trustee or the appropriate honorific (i.e.: Mr., 

Mrs. or Ms.), and members of the public by the appropriate honorific.  Subject to the Mayor’s discretion, Board Members shall 

be limited to speaking two times when debating an item on the agenda.  Making a motion, asking a question or making a 

suggestion are not counted as speaking in a debate.  

 

Section 7. Presentations to the Board.  Items on the agenda presented by individuals, businesses or other organizations shall be 

given up to 5 minutes to make a presentation.  On certain issues, presenters may be given more time, as determined by the 

Mayor and Town Staff.  After the presentation, Trustees shall be given the opportunity to ask questions. 

 

Section 8. Public Comment.  After discussion of an agenda item by the Board of Trustees has concluded, the Mayor shall open 

the floor for comment from members of the public, who shall be allowed the opportunity to comment or ask questions on the 

agenda item.  Each member of the public wishing to address the Town Board shall be recognized by the presiding officer before 

speaking.  Members of the public shall speak from the podium, stating their name, the address of their residence and any group 

they are representing prior to making comment or asking a question.  Comments shall be directed to the Mayor or presiding 

officer, not to an individual Trustee or Town employee.  Comments or questions should be confined to the agenda item or issue(s) 

under discussion.  The speaker should offer factual information and refrain from obscene language and personal attacks. 

3



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

 

Section 9.  Unacceptable Behavior. Disruptive behavior shall result in expulsion from the meeting.   

 

Section 10.  Posting of Rules of Procedure for Paonia Board of Trustees Meetings. These rules of procedure shall be provided in 

the Town Hall meeting room for each Board of Trustees meeting so that all attendees know how the meeting will be conducted. 

 

II. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Section 1. Use of Consent Agenda. The Mayor, working with Town Staff, shall place items on the Consent Agenda. By using a 

Consent Agenda, the Board has consented to the consideration of certain items as a group under one motion. Should a Consent 

Agenda be used at a meeting, an appropriate amount of discussion time will be allowed to review any item upon request.  

Section 2. General Guidelines. Items for consent are those which usually do not require discussion or explanation prior to action 

by the Board, are non-controversial and/or similar in content, or are those items which have already been discussed or explained 

and do not require further discussion or explanation. Such agenda items may include ministerial tasks such as, but not limited 

to, approval of previous meeting minutes, approval of staff reports, addressing routine correspondence, approval of liquor 

licenses renewals and approval or extension of other Town licenses. Minor changes in the minutes such as non-material Scribner 

errors may be made without removing the minutes from the Consent Agenda.  Should any Trustee feel there is a material error 

in the minutes, they should request the minutes be removed from the Consent Agenda for Board discussion. 

Section 3. Removal of Item from Consent Agenda. One or more items may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a timely 

request of any Trustee. A request is timely if made prior to the vote on the Consent Agenda. The request does not require a 

second or a vote by the Board. An item removed from the Consent Agenda will then be discussed and acted on separately either 

immediately following the consideration of the Consent Agenda or placed later on the agenda, at the discretion of the Board.  

 

III.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Section 1.  An executive session may only be called at a regular or special Board meeting where official action may be taken by 

the Board, not at a work session of the Board.  To convene an executive session, the Board shall announce to the public in the 

open meeting the topic to be discussed in the executive session, including specific citation to the statute authorizing the Board 

to meet in an executive session and identifying the particular matter to be discussed “in as much detail as possible without 

compromising the purpose for which the executive session is authorized.” In the even the Board plans to discuss more than one 

of the authorized topics in the executive session, each should be announced, cited and described. Following the announcement 

of the intent to convene an executive session, a motion must then be made and seconded.  In order to go into executive session, 

there must be the affirmative vote of two thirds (2/3) of Members of the Board. 

 

Section 2.  During executive session, minutes or notes of the deliberations should not be taken. Since meeting minutes are subject 

to inspection under the Colorado Open Records Act, the keeping of minutes would defeat the private nature of executive 

session. In addition, the deliberations carried out during executive session should not be discussed outside of that session or 

with individuals not participating in the session.  The contexts of an executive session are to remain confidential unless a 

majority of the Trustees vote to disclose the contents of the executive session. 

 

Section 3.  Once the deliberations have taken place in executive session, the Board should reconvene in regular session to take 

any formal action decided upon during the executive session.  If you have questions regarding the wording of the motion or 

whether any other information should be disclosed on the record, it is essential for you to consult with the Town Attorney on 

these matters. 

 

 

IV. SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT 

 

Section 1. Deviations.  The Board may deviate from the procedures set forth in this Resolution, if, in its sole discretion, such 

deviation is necessary under the circumstances. 

Section 2.  Amendment.   The Board may amend these Rules of Procedures Policy from time to time. 

4



 

November 18, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Roll Call 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

5



 

November 18, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Agenda Approval 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran 

 

 

 

6



 

November 18, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Announcements  

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran 

 

 

 

7



 

November 20, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

COVID-19 - Review of Established Policies & Current Updates 

Summary:   

Opportunity to review resolutions and policies established and approved by the Board during 

the beginning of the pandemic. 

 

Notes: 

 

The Town remains under a local disaster declaration through the end of December.  I 

anticipate an extension being presented at the December 15th Regular Board meeting. 

 

Internally the Town is operating at a hybrid level between tier 2 and tier 3 – with reduced 

hours of operation, increased sanitization, and remote office hours, as necessary. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

8



9



10



11



12



13



 

1 
 

 
Coronavirus (COVID-19) Response Plan 

March 17, 2020 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
INTRODUCTION       Page 2 
 
 
CONTINUITY OF TOWN OPERATIONS    Page 2 
 
 
PHASING OF RESPONSE      Page 3 
 
 
COMMUNICATIONS PLAN     Page 5 
 
 
QUARANTINE PLAN      Page 5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14



 

2 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
The purpose of this plan is to offer guidelines, strategies, frameworks and thought processes on 
how to deal with Coronavirus (COVID-19). Nothing contained herein is absolute. Our aim is to 
remain flexible as we work to address this unique, rapidly evolving situation and the challenges 
that come with it.  
 
The main objectives and priorities of this plan are as follows: 

1. Safety, Health and Welfare: Our number one priority is to protect the safety, health and 
welfare of Town of Paonia employees, our family members, and the community. Please 
continue to use your best judgement to do so.  

2. Reliable and High-Quality Service: Delivering exceptional services to the community is 
our second priority, but it is only possible if we accomplish priority #1. The community is 
relying on us for a variety of essential services, and this plan attempts to address how 
we can continue to make that happen.  

3. Be Flexible: By committing to being flexible and working together, we will be prepared 
for any challenge that comes our way. Therefore, anything in this document is subject to 
change, and we will work hard to keep everyone informed of what happens.  

 

CONTINUITY OF TOWN OPERATIONS 
 
Critical and Essential Operations 
The following services are critical to the ongoing health, safety, and general welfare of the Paonia 
community. This list is provided to help inform the public of what is considered critical and 
essential in time of an emergency situation and represents the baseline for what the Town will 
do its best to continue to provide. Individual Department Response Plans, if necessary, will 
specifically address continuity of operations for these departments as they modify operations to 
support critical/essential operations only.  

• Police Department 
o Continued criminal policing 
o Following first responder protocols 
o Assistance with quarantine operations 

• Public Works 
o Streets 

▪ Snowplowing 
▪ Street maintenance 
▪ Trash Services 
▪ Assistance with quarantine operations, if necessary 

o Parks and Facilities 
▪ Emergency repairs 

o Water and Sewer 
▪ Operation of water treatment and wastewater treatment facilities 
▪ Emergency repairs of critical infrastructure 

15



 

3 
 

• Administration 
o Internal and external information dissemination 
o Payment of bills, payroll 
o Utility customer needs, information dissemination 

• Town Council 
o Essential policy formulation and decision-making 
o Communication to the public 

 
Non-Critical and Support Functions 

• Planning, Building, and Community Initiatives  
o Will continue operations, as feasible, from home or support primary essential 

operations listed above 

• Customer Service/Town Hall Reception 
o Customer phone calls and mail distribution will be absorbed by staff, or halted, as 

necessary 
 

PHASING OF RESPONSE 
 
In addition to taking the direction from local health organizations, the State, and Federal 
government, the Town will have the following tiers of responses:  
 
Tier I – Heightened Awareness 
The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) and local health authorities have indicated 
that COVID-19 is in the U.S. and are encouraging citizens to be aware and to focus on sanitization 
and hygiene. 
 

• Encourage employees to stay home if sick or to go home if exhibiting symptoms while at 
work. Employees will continue to use sick leave, as is warranted.  

• Identify workspaces where employees can temporarily isolate if they are awaiting 
transportation to their home or medical care. 

• Wash hands often and use hand sanitizer when hand washing is not possible.  

• Cover mouth with arm/elbow if coughing. 

• Heightened amount of environmental sanitation – Lysol, wipes, environmental germicide 
sprays, etc. 

• Employees should refrain from traveling to conferences and/or meetings in other parts 
areas where cases of COVID-19 are expanding. 

 
Tier II – Statewide Concern 
The Colorado Department of Health and Environment (CDPHE) has indicated multiple cases of 
COVID-19 within the State of Colorado. When directed by the Town Administrator, the Town will 
move its response to Tier II which, in addition to Tier I steps, includes: 

• Employees should refrain from physical contact with each other and with members of the 
public (i.e., handshakes, hugging, etc.). CDC recommends a 6’ distance of separation. 

16



 

4 
 

• Employees should limit or eliminate any outside agency meeting attendance, unless able 
to be done remotely. 

• Town should begin to limit internal meetings and non-essential contact with the public. 

• Employees who self-identify as high risk (having compromised immune systems, for 
example) should work from home. If sick, no sick leave will be required to be used. It will 
be treated as regular working time. 

• The Town will take direction from State and local Health authorities. 
 
Tier III – Delta County Concern 
Delta County Public Health Department has indicated multiple cases of COVID-19 within the 
County. When directed by the Town Administrator, the Town will move its response to Tier III 
which, in addition to Tier II steps, includes: 

• Employees will be directed to stay home (or go home) if they or any family member they 
live with is exhibiting any symptoms, or if they are high risk. Employees staying home will 
not be required to use sick leave. It will be treated as regular pay. 

• All Town meetings or events shall be eliminated, unless able to be done remotely. 

• Town buildings will be minimally staffed, there will be no public access. Public will be 
directed to conduct business online, if feasible, or by phone. 

• Employee teleworking and staggered shifts will be authorized. Departments will continue 
to roll out additional measures or plans to allow employees to work remotely, when 
feasible. 

• Employees shall take additional steps to limit exposure with other employees and with 
members of the public. All work that can be done over the phone, email or teleconference 
shall be done that way.  

• Reduced staffing shall be authorized. Individual departments will take steps to ensure 
minimal staffing and that public access is limited.   

• Heightened level of sanitization of spaces including additional germicide spraying. 

• Other steps as directed by State and local Health authorities. 
 
Tier IV – Full Implementation of Response Plan 
Tier IV may occur at such time as Delta County Public Health Department recommends 
regionwide social spacing, or schools are shut down, or at such other time as Paonia deems it to 
be in the best interest of the organization and/or community. When directed by the Town 
Administrator, the Town will move its response to Tier IV which, in addition to Tier III steps, 
includes: 

• Departments will fully enact their individual departmental plans. Teleworking options and 
staggered shift work maximized. Only essential services are ongoing, unless able to be 
provided through employees working remotely. 

• Incident Command may be set up locally or in coordination with County authorities. 

• Other steps as directed by State and local Health authorities, including support of their 
efforts. 

 
 

17



 

5 
 

 

COMMUNICATIONS PLAN 
 
The Communications plan will largely follow the lead of State and County officials, including the 
County Emergency Manager, with information disseminated locally through all of our 
communication channels. Communication efforts include the following:  
 

• Internal communications designed to keep Town staff informed and safe while continuing 
critical government functions (e-mails, phone calls, etc.); and, 
 

• External communications that are first, supportive of the Delta County Public Health 
Department’s communications to the public, and second, useful for specific local needs 
of the public (Town website, email, social media, signs/flyers/banners if feasible, etc.). 

 

QUARANTINE PLAN 
 
In the event of the need for a quarantine, the Town will follow the direction of State and County 
Health officials, who will provide specific information relative to quarantine processes and 
procedures.  
 

 
 
 

18



 

November 20, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Trustee Knutson - COGCC Update (Colorado Oil & Gas Conservation 

Commission) 

Summary:   

Updated information from Trustee Knutson – the Towns LGD (local governmental designee). 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

19



 

 

Report to the Board regarding the Colorado Oil and Gas Conservation Commission (COGCC) 
 
As your Local Government Designee to COGCC, this is provided to the Board as an update to 
the activities of COGCC.  I welcome any guidance and feedback from my fellow Trustees 
regarding my representation of the position of the Town. I reached out to staff and a 
commissioner earlier this month to reinforce the need for notification of spills especially those 
that are outside our Town Limits with possible impacts to irrigation and our streams/rivers.  I 
have reached out to COGCC Commissioner Messner of Gunnison County, Citizens for a 
Healthy Community, the Western Slope Conservation Center, the Delta County Oil and Gas 
Designee, and industry representatives for input as I try to represent a balanced perspective. 
 
COGCC has been deliberating on the ways that oil and gas development can be more 
protective of wildlife. The wildlife series is the final pshaw of a nine month Mission-change rule 
making process.  Resulting from Senate Bill 181, wildlife, public health and safety must be 
prioritized when regulating oil and gas development. Loose oversight and regulation of oil and 
gas development can place detrimental pressure on the natural habitats that wildlife depend 
upon. It is important to our economy and our neighbors to ensure that our wildlife populations 
and fisheries thrive.  
 

The COGCC will best protect Colorado’s aquatic and big game by preventing ground 

disturbance in big game wildlife corridors and impacts on protected waters. Best management 

practices by oil and gas operations can ensure the conservation of natural habitats. Colorado’s 

riparian areas makeup just one-percent of our landscape, but support 80% of all wildlife habitat. 
Best practices also protect our clean water supplies and shield against floods that pose a threat 
to health and safety. I hope that the COGCC will adopt a minimum 500-foot setback from 

riparian areas to better support and protect Colorado’s most cherished waterways, such as Gold 

Medal waters and cutthroat trout habitat. 
 
Those of us who hunt, fish, and recreate in the state know how important it is to maintain our big 
game populations. Our local businesses and communities know the impacts of healthy and 
robust recreational tourism. If we ever return to normalcy after COVID19, we cannot go back to 
business as usual. All of us - citizens, leaders, oil & gas developers, and others - must work 
together to rebuild our small businesses, communities, and our way of life by protecting wildlife 
in our state and in Delta County. 
 
I am impressed with the diligent work of the Commission to date. Five full-time Commissioners 
are being transparent in providing zoom access to their meetings and posting their work on the 
website (https://cogcc.state.co.us/#/home). In addition, here is a link to the map provided by the 
Department of Parks and Wildlife, showing Aquatic areas needing protection:  
bit.ly/sb181waters 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Dave Knutson 
Trustee and Local Government Designee to COGCC 
Paonia 

20

https://cogcc.state.co.us/#/home
http://bit.ly/sb181waters


 

November 18, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Visitors & Guests 

     

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: Trustee Johnson: 

Trustee Knutson: Trustee Meck: 

 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

21



 

November 18, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 

Administrator’s Report 

    Previous Visitors & Guests Follow-Up 

Public Works 

Police Report 

Attorney Report  

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VW – verbal warning 

WW – written warning 

CIT - citation 

CAA – clear adult arrest 

UTL – unable to locate 

UNF - unfounded 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: Trustee Johnson: 

Trustee Knutson: Trustee Meck: 

: 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

22



rplwlitr.x1

Paonia Police Department
Law Incident Table, by Date and Time

Date Occurred:   11/01/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
17:22:54 TRESPASS

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD VW

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   11/02/20
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
13:18:04 DRUG VIOLATION GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD CIT
18:29:40 BURGLARY OAK AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   11/03/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
12:29:27 VIN INSPECTION PPD DIST3
14:25:53 Medical/transfe PPD PPD
17:07:43 Noise Complaint

Address
COBURN RD, Paonia, CO
BOX ELDER AVE, Paonia, CO
4TH ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD UNF

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   11/04/20
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
10:11:29 WELFARE CHECK PAN AMERICAN AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   11/06/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
11:26:51 Disturbance PPD PPD VW
18:13:22 Traffic Stop PPD DIST3 WW
19:31:32 Traffic Stop

Address
OAK AVE, Paonia, CO
Grand AVE, Paonia, CO 
Grand Avenue, Paonia, CO PPD DIST1 CIT

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   11/07/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
09:36:40 ALARM PPD PPD
12:13:51 CITIZEN ASSIST

Address
3RD ST, Paonia, CO 
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

23



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 2 of 3

rplwlitr.x1

Date Occurred:   11/08/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
21:45:09 SUSPICIOUS

Address
POPLAR AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD UNF

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   11/09/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
07:40:01 911

Address
4TH ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   11/10/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
18:07:43 AGENCY ASSIST PPD PPD

22:45:30 AGENCY ASSIST

Address
CANYON RD, Paonia, CO

HIGHWAY 133, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3
Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   11/11/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
11:50:22 SUSPICIOUS

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   11/12/20
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
12:29:34 FRAUD 2ND ST, Paonia, CO                           PPD PPD
12:59:41 AGENCY ASSIST PPD PPD
14:30:10 CITIZEN ASSIST PPD PPD
16:21:54 VIN INSPECTION PPD PPD
16:33:05 AGENCY ASSIST

GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO 
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO 
GRAND AVE; PPD, Paonia, CO 
HIGHWAY 133, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3

Total Incidents for this Date: 5

Date Occurred:   11/13/20
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
08:57:08 VIN INSPECTION PPD DIST3
08:59:29 VIN INSPECTION

COBURN RD, Paonia, CO 
COBURN RD, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3

15:27:07 CITIZEN ASSIST 2ND ST, Paonia, CO            PPD PPD UTL
16:32:29 TrafficAccident BOX ELDER AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
16:58:15 ANIMAL CONTROL GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
Total Incidents for this Date: 5

24



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 3 of 3

Report Includes:
All dates between `00:00:01 11/01/20` and `00:00:01 11/16/20`, All agencies matching `PPD`, All disposition's, All natures,
All location codes, All cities

rplwlitr.x1

Date Occurred:   11/14/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
19:17:29 Traffic Stop

Address
RIO GRANDE AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD VW

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   11/15/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
20:44:56 M-1 HOLD

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Total reported: 29

VW-3, CIT-2, UNF-2, WW-1, UTL-1

25



1 MG Treatment SCADA System Installation Update 

 

11/19/2020 Removed all old SCADA hardware and started install of new hardware. 

11/20/2020 Finishing the install of the new hardware and starting to program new equipment. 

11/25/2020 Install of new license for programs  

Phonz + is working on getting a static IP Address for the water plant to be able to finish everything up. 

 

Plant should be up and running by 12/1/2020  

26



 

November 18, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Treasurer’s Report 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: Trustee Johnson: 

Trustee Knutson: Trustee Meck: 

 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



 

November 18, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Disbursements 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: Trustee Johnson: 

Trustee Knutson: Trustee Meck: 

 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



 

November 20, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

2021 Budget Public Hearing 

Summary:   

Included is the link to ClearGov 2021 draft budget through the Town of Paonia website! 

Attached is the transmittal letter and spreadsheets to assist as we all learn a new system for 

review of financial documents through the ClearGov model.  The hearing gives the community 

an opportunity to weigh in on the finalized budget roadmap for 2021 before final approval at 

the December 15th Board meeting. 

 

Notes: 

LINK TO 2021 BUDGET BOOK: 

 

https://townofpaonia.colorado.gov/government/town-business/paonia-budget-financial-

information 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

49

https://townofpaonia.colorado.gov/government/town-business/paonia-budget-financial-information
https://townofpaonia.colorado.gov/government/town-business/paonia-budget-financial-information


50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



 

November 20, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Clark’s End Minor Subdivision 

Summary:   

Minor subdivision request. Administrator recommendation and complete application materials 

in packet. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

89



1 | P a g e  Clark’s End 
Minor-Nov 2020 

 

ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

11-20-2020 
 

 

TO: TOWN COUNCIL 

FROM: CORINNE FERGUSON 

SUBJECT: CLARK’S END MINOR SUBDIVISION 

 

Lynn Mattingly provided an initial major subdivision application and variance request for planning 

commission and Council review in 2019.  The hearing was finalized, and application denied August 27, 2019 

with the main concern being traffic access along Clark Avenue.  The applicant provided an alternative minor 

subdivision application for review August 28,2020.  The application was deemed complete October 9, 2020. 

See below: 

Requirements for Administrator Review Per Municipal Code Article 6 Division 3 and amending Ordinance 

2018-03: 

Complete application packet and Fee payment. – Reviewed as submitted, deemed complete 10/9/2020. 

Requirements for Administrator Recommendation of Approval Per amending Ordinance 2018-03: 

(1) All such proposed parcels are divided by, or parallel to and part of the original lot, tract or parcel 

lines on the Town Plat; Refer to Plat Map J19031 - COMPLETE 

 

(2) All the developed proposed parcels have the applicable yard setbacks which can be required for the 

existing structures; Proposed Lot 1 – 3 are vacant – lot size permits development within setback 

requirements.  
 

(3) All structures on proposed parcels do not exceed the maximum coverage area allowed in the subject 

zone district; -  COMPLETE 

 

(4) All of the proposed areas of the proposed parcels conform to the zoned uses and dimensional 

characteristics of lots or tracts in the applicable Zone District of the Town regulations; COMPLETE 

– Proposed Lot 1-3 retain current zoning R-2 medium density residential.  Required minimum 

lot size for R-2 permitted by right is 8,000 square feet. Proposed lot 1 is 13,421.7 sq ft. Proposed 

lot 2 is 14,771.5 sq ft. Proposed lot 3 is 19,626.6 sq ft. All water and sewer taps paid in full for 

construction of a maximum of two (2) single family dwellings or duplex on each lot. 

90



2 | P a g e  Clark’s End 
Minor-Nov 2020 

 

 

(5) The minor subdivision application creates no more than three additional parcels; COMPLETE – 

three (3) lots proposed in application. 

 

(6) None of the proposed parcels violates any Section of the Town regulations; COMPLETE – all 

variance requests have been adjusted to meet code requirements. 
 

(7) The minor subdivision complies with the criteria in Sec. 17-6-250; CORRECT (Board review 

requirements) 

 

(8) The application has been referred to all affected Town departments and utility companies for review 

and comment at least fifteen (15) days prior to a decision on the application; COMPLETE – No 

objections 
 

(9) Minor subdivision applications shall not be available more than one time on the same lot or adjacent 

lots under the same ownership. COMPLETE – No subdivisions have occurred under new 

ownership which occurred January 2019. 

 

 

Requirements for Review and Town Council Approval Per amending Ordinance 2018-03: 

(1) Comply with all applicable zoning requirements of the zone district in which the minor subdivision 

is located;  

 

(2) Have a front parcel line on a street only, and such parcel access shall have the following 

characteristics:  

a. Said front parcel line must be at least twenty-five (25) feet long or the minimum lot width for 

the applicable zone district, whichever is shorter;  

 

b. The vehicular access to any primary structure on a parcel shall be from a street, must be a 

minimum of twenty-five (25) feet wide along its entire length, and must be owned in fee simple 

by the owner of the parcel being accessed;  

 

c. Vehicular access to a primary structure from an alley, including the access required pursuant 

to this Subsection, may be approved by the Board of Trustees only if either one (1) of the 

following conditions exists:  

 

1. The primary vehicular access existed from an alley prior to the filing of the application 

for a minor subdivision approval; or  

 

2. The division between subdivision parcels is a stream or similar physical barrier 

preventing vehicular access from the street (in such case, the applicant shall provide 

additional land to create an alley at least twenty (20) feet wide from the subject parcel 

to the nearest Town street and upgrade the alley to Town standards or in the absence 

thereof, to the approval of the Town Public Works Director); or 

 

91



3 | P a g e  Clark’s End 
Minor-Nov 2020 

 

3. No street access exists.  

 

(3) Provide for underground utilities upon each building site;  

(4) Provide for adequate fire and flood protection and emergency access;  

 

(5) Not increase the potential for breach of the public safety, or damage to public or private property 

by fire, flood or erosion;  

 

(6) Not create congestion, automotive or pedestrian safety problems or other traffic hazards;  

 

(7) To be designed in a manner that directs the placement of roads, utilities and structures away from 

any unstable soils, or mitigates the effect of unstable soils, geologic hazards, and other site conditions so as to 

minimize the potential for breach of the public safety, or damage to public or private property;  

 

(8) Not create significant adverse effects to public facilities, rights-of-way or utilities;  

 

(9) Not create significant adverse impacts on the use of adjacent property;  

 

(10) Otherwise be consistent and comply with the objectives purposes, conditions and requirements of 

these subdivision regulations and the zoning ordinance of the Town regulations; and  

 

(11) If deemed appropriate by the Town Administrator or the Board of Trustees, execute a subdivision 

improvements agreement memorializing the applicant’s obligation and agreement to construct, at the 

applicant’s cost and expense, all public and private utility and street improvements in accordance with the 

Town's utility and street standards. The guaranty that such will be timely completed to the Town's satisfaction 

shall be secured by a bond or other security acceptable to the Town, in the sole discretion of the Board of 

Trustees, equal to one hundred fifty percent (150%) of the estimated cost of completion of such improvements, 

as determined by the Board of Trustees.  

 

Knowing the voiced concern from the Clark Avenue neighbors regarding potential development of the 

proposed lots the Town – in conjunction with the applicant – posted on-site the scheduled minor 

subdivision review and plat map as well as hand-delivered a copy of said posted notification to each 

neighbor.  At the time of this report I have received no comments regarding the application.  

Having reviewed and confirmed all requirements and information provided it is my recommendation 

to the Board the approval of Clark’s End Minor Subdivision as provided. 

 

 

 

 

92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



MATTINGLY LYNN D
14911 ROYAL RD
PAONIA, CO 81428-4105

Account: R008625
Tax Area: BR- -  - BR-

Acres: 1.430

Parcel: 324505249007
Situs Address:
CLARK RD
PAONIA, 81428

Value Summary
Value By: Market Override
Land (1) $76,000 N/A

Extra Features (1) $11,928 N/A

Total $87,928 $87,928

Legal Description
CLARK RD PAONIA 81428  S: 5 T: 14S R: 91W Subdivision: B R
ADDITION Lot: 7  TOTAL AC 1.43+- (N107.5', S120.4', E50.0'+97.0',
W115.6') LOT 7 B R ADD.  PT OF SEC 5 T14S R91W 6PM  BEG AT
SW COR HAMMONDS ADD PAONIA S1* E300' TO BEG N89*14'
E250' S1* E150' S63*59' E96.8' S3*18' W114.6' N63*59' W150.7'
N63*W110.7' N53*33' W120.4'  N1* W115.6' TO BEG BK 441 PG 1524
(R-345594) BK 674 PG 134 BK 679 PG 186 BK 680 PGS 529 THRU 533
BK 693 PGS 822 & 823 R-350896 ANNEX R708364

Public Remarks
Entry Date Model Remark

08/18/2003 MAIL ADD CHNGD/OWNR'S REQUEST 8-03 GW

01/22/2019 TD INVENTORY FORMS MAILED. JW 1/31/19 FORMS RETURNED AND SCANNED IN. JW

03/20/2019 1/31/2019 CHECKED SALE-SMALL UTILITY, HOOP BUILDING- BASICALLY A VACANT
LAND SALE-JT

APPROX SIZE 1.43 AC+-

Sale Data
Doc. # Sale Date Deed Type Validity Verified Sale Price Ratio Adj. Price Ratio Time Adj.

Price
Ratio

708364 01/15/2019 WD QV Y $175,000 50.24 $175,000 50.24 $175,000 50.24

B: 693 P: 822 11/12/1992 SP QV Y $12,000 732.73 $12,000 732.73 $12,000 732.73

B: 680 P: 529 02/06/1992 QJ UV Y $5,000 1758.56 $5,000 1758.56 $5,000 1758.56

Land Occurrence 1
LVal 100412 - PAO TOWN LOT 1-2 AC Abstract Code 0100 - 0100 - vacant residential lots

Lot Front 0 Lot Depth 0

Property Record Card
DELTA COUNTY Delta County Assessor

A#: R008625 P#: 324505249007 As of: 11/20/2020 Page 1 of 2
108



Land Occurrence 1
Adj 1 100 Adj 2 100

Adj 3 100 Adj 4 100

Neighborhood 41001 - PAONIA Road 8 - U PAVED

TOPO 1 - AVG TOPO Utilities 7 - W/S/E/G

Appr Dist 3 - PAONIA - JODY Subdivision 40009 - B R ADDITION TO PAONIA

Use Code 0 Review Date 201901 - Jan-19

SubArea ADJUSTED HEATED PRIME ACTUAL

LT 1 1

Total 1.00 1.00

Value Rate Rate Rate Rate

$76,000 76,000.00 76,000.00

Extra Features Occurrence 1
CODE 15300 - B/LOW SHED Abstract Code 0600 - NON-RESIDENTIAL

STRUCTURES

DIM1 0 DIM2 0

Neighborhood 41001 - PAONIA Adj 1 100

ECONAREA 2 - ECONAREA-RURAL SUBDS

SubArea ADJUSTED HEATED PRIME ACTUAL

UT - UT 2,960 2,960

Total 2,960.00 2,960.00

Value Rate Rate Rate Rate

$11,928 4.03 4.03

Abstract Summary
Code Classification Actual Value Taxable

Value
Actual

Override
Taxable

Override
0100 0100 - vacant residential lots $76,000 $22,040 NA NA

0600 0600 - minor structures $11,928 $3,459 NA NA

Total $87,928 $25,499 NA NA

Property Record Card
DELTA COUNTY Delta County Assessor

A#: R008625 P#: 324505249007 As of: 11/20/2020 Page 2 of 2
109



As a courtesy at the request of applicant, 

please find the following information 

regarding: 

Board Review for: Mattingly - Clark’s End Minor 

Subdivision 

Regular Meeting (Virtual Attendance) November 24, 

2020 at 6:30PM 

 

Map and Application Available at Town Hall for 

review. Please call ahead to schedule time. 970-

527-4101 

110



 

Review Criteria: Ord:2018-03 Municipal Code: Chapter 17, Article 6, 

Division 3 

111



 

November 20, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Charter Communication Franchise Agreement 

Summary:   

Revised Franchise agreement.  Note the reduction of franchise fee to 3% and addition of 

public access channel – Section 13 page 10, as directed by Board at the November 10th 

meeting. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

112



 1 

 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

This Franchise Agreement (“Franchise”) is between the Town of Paonia, Colorado, a 

Colorado Statutory Town, hereinafter referred to as the “Grantor” and Spectrum Pacific West, 

LLC, locally known as CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS, hereinafter referred to as the 

“Grantee.” 

WHEREAS, the Grantor does not dispute that the Grantee has substantially complied with 

the material terms of the current Franchise under applicable laws, and that the financial, legal and 

technical ability of the Grantee is sufficient to provide services, facilities and equipment necessary 

to meet the future cable-related needs of the community; and 

WHEREAS, having afforded the public adequate notice and opportunity for comment, 

Grantor desires to enter into this Franchise with the Grantee for the construction and operation of 

a cable system on the terms set forth herein; and  

WHEREAS, the Grantor and Grantee have complied with all federal and State-mandated 

procedural and substantive requirements pertinent to this franchise renewal; and 

WHEREAS, the Grantor shall comply with the generally applicable and non-

discriminatory provisions Town of Paonia Municipal Code, and applicable state statute in adopting 

this Franchise; and  

WHEREAS, this is not a franchise pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-32-101; and 

  

WHEREAS, the Grantor has the authority to enter into this Agreement pursuant to the 

authority granted to it under C.R.S. § 31-15-101 et. seq.. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Grantor and Grantee agree as follows: 

SECTION 1 

Definition of Terms 

1.1 Terms.  For the purpose of this franchise the following terms, phrases, words and their 

derivations shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the Cable Communications Policy Act of 

1984, as amended from time to time (the “Cable Act”), unless otherwise defined herein.  When 

not inconsistent with the context, words used in the present tense include the future, words in the 

plural number include the singular number, and words in the singular number include the plural 

number.  The word “shall” is mandatory and “may” is permissive.  Words not defined shall be 

given their common and ordinary meaning. 

A. “Cable System,” “Cable Service,” and “Basic Cable Service” shall be defined as 

set forth in the Cable Act. 

B. “Board” shall mean the Town of Paonia Board of Trustees. 

113



 2 

 

C. “Cable Act” shall mean the Cable Communication Policy Act of 1984, as amended, 

47 U.S.C. §§ 521, et. seq. 

D.  “Channel” shall mean a portion of the electromagnetic frequency spectrum which 

is used in a cable system and which is capable of delivering a television channel. 

E. “Equipment” shall mean any poles, wires, cable, antennae, underground conduits, 

manholes, and other conductors, fixtures, equipment and other facilities used for 

the maintenance and operation of physical facilities located in the Streets, including 

the Cable System. 

F. “FCC” shall mean the Federal Communications Commission and any successor 

governmental entity thereto. 

G. “Franchise” shall mean the non-exclusive rights granted pursuant to this Franchise 

to construct operate and maintain a Cable System along the public ways within all 

or a specified area in the Franchise Area. 

H. “Franchise Area” shall mean the municipal boundaries of the Town of Paonia, 

including any alterations to the Town boundary by annexation, de-annexation, or 

other legal means. 

I. “Gross Revenue” means any revenue, as determined in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles, actually received by the Grantee from Subscribers 

residing in within the Franchise Area for Cable Service purchased by Subscribers 

provided, however, that such phrase shall not include:  (1) any taxes, fees or 

assessments collected by the Grantee from Subscribers for pass-through to a 

government agency, including, without limitation, any state or federal regulatory 

fees, the franchise fee, or any sales or utility taxes; (2) unrecovered bad debt; (3) 

credits, refunds and deposits paid to Subscribers; (4) any exclusions available under 

applicable State law.  

J.  “Person” shall mean an individual, partnership, association, organization, 

corporation, trust or governmental entity. 

K. “Service Area” shall mean the area described in subsection 6.1 hereto. 

L. “Standard Installation” shall mean installations to residences and buildings that are 

located up to 125 feet from the point of connection to Grantee’s existing distribution 

system. 

M. “State” shall mean the State of Colorado. 

N. “Street” shall include each of the following located within the Franchise Area:  

public streets, roadways, highways, bridges, land paths, boulevards, avenues, lanes, 

alleys, sidewalks, circles, drives, easements, rights of way and similar public ways 

and extensions and additions thereto, including but not limited to public utility 

easements, dedicated utility strips, or rights-of-way dedicated for compatible uses 

114



 3 

 

now or hereafter held by the Grantor in the Franchise Area, which shall entitle the 

Grantee to the use thereof for the purpose of installing, operating, extending, 

repairing and maintaining the Cable System. 

O. “Subscriber” shall mean any Person lawfully receiving Cable Service from the 

Grantee. 

SECTION 2 

Grant of Franchise 

2.1 Grant.  The Grantor hereby grants to the Grantee a nonexclusive Franchise which 

authorizes the Grantee to erect, construct, extend, operate and maintain in, upon, along, across, 

above, over and under the Streets, now in existence and as may be created or established during 

its terms, all Equipment, including the Cable System.  Nothing in this Franchise shall be construed 

to prohibit the Grantee from offering any service over its Cable System that is not prohibited by 

federal or State law.  This Franchise and the right to use and occupy said Streets shall not be 

exclusive, and the Grantor reserves the right to grant the use of said Streets to any Persons during 

the period of this Franchise. 

 

2.2 Term.  The Franchise and the rights, privileges and authority hereby granted shall be for 

an initial term of ten (10) years, commencing on the Effective Date of this Franchise as set forth 

in Section 15.12.   

2.3 Police Powers.  The Grantee agrees to comply with the terms of any lawfully adopted 

generally applicable local ordinance necessary to the safety, health, and welfare of the public, to 

the extent that the provisions of the ordinance do not have the effect of limiting the benefits or 

expanding the obligations of the Grantee that are granted by this Franchise.  This Franchise is a 

contract and except as to those changes which are the result of the Grantor’s lawful exercise of its 

general police power, the Grantor may not take any unilateral action which materially changes the 

mutual promises in this contract.   

2.4 Cable System Franchise Required.  No Cable System shall be allowed to occupy or use 

the Streets or public rights-of-way of the Franchise Area or be allowed to operate without a Cable 

System Franchise. 

SECTION 3 

Franchise Renewal 

3.1 Procedures for Renewal.  The Grantor and the Grantee agree that any proceedings 

undertaken by the Grantor that relate to the renewal of the Grantee’s Franchise shall be governed 

by and comply with the provisions of Section 626 of the Cable Act, or any such successor statute. 

115



 4 

 

SECTION 4 

Indemnification and Insurance 

4.1 Indemnification.  The Grantee shall, by acceptance of the Franchise granted herein, defend 

the Grantor, its officers, boards, commissions, agents, and employees for all claims for injury to 

any Person or property caused by the negligence of Grantee in the construction or operation of the 

Cable System and in the event of a determination of liability shall indemnify and hold Grantor, its 

officers, boards, commissions, agents, and employees harmless from any and all liabilities, claims, 

demands, or judgments growing out of any injury to any Person or property as a result of the 

negligence of Grantee arising out of the construction, repair, extension, maintenance, operation or 

removal of its wires, poles or other equipment of any kind or character used in connection with the 

operation of the Cable System, provided that the Grantor shall give the Grantee written notice of 

its obligation to indemnify the Grantor within ten (10) days of receipt of a claim or action pursuant 

to this section.  In the event any such claim arises, the Grantor shall tender the defense thereof to 

the Grantee and the Grantee shall have the right to defend, settle or compromise any claims arising 

hereunder and the Grantor shall cooperate fully herein.  If the Grantor determines in good faith 

that its interests cannot be represented by the Grantee, the Grantee shall be excused from any 

obligation to represent the Grantor.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Grantee shall not be 

obligated to indemnify the Grantor for any damages, liability or claims resulting from the willful 

misconduct or negligence of the Grantor or for the Grantor’s use of the Cable System.   

Notwithstanding the foregoing indemnification, neither the Grantor nor Grantee does not waive 

any rights under the statutes and constitution of the State of Colorado or the United States except 

as otherwise specifically set forth herein. 

4.2 Insurance. 

A. The Grantee shall maintain throughout the term of the Franchise insurance in 

amounts at least as follows: 

Workers’ Compensation Statutory Limits 

 

Commercial General Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence, 

$2,000,000 General Aggregate 

 

Auto Liability including coverage on 

all owned, non-owned hired autos  

 

$1,000,000 per occurrence Combined 

Single Limit 

Umbrella Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence 

 

B. The Grantor shall be added as an additional insured, arising out of work performed 

by Charter, to the above Commercial General Liability, Auto Liability and 

Umbrella Liability insurance coverage. 

C. The Grantee shall furnish the Grantor with current certificates of insurance 

evidencing such coverage upon request. 

116



 5 

 

SECTION 5 

Service Obligations 

5.1 No Discrimination.  Grantee shall not deny service, deny access, or otherwise discriminate 

against Subscribers, Channel users, or general citizens on the basis of race, color, religion, national 

origin, age or sex. 

5.2 Privacy.  The Grantee shall fully comply with the privacy rights of Subscribers as 

contained in Cable Act Section 631 (47 U.S.C. § 551). 

SECTION 6 

Service Availability 

6.1 Service Area.  The Grantee shall make Cable Service distributed over the Cable System 

available to every residence within the Franchise Area where there is a minimum density of at least 

thirty-five (35) residences per linear strand mile of aerial cable as measured from Grantee’s closest 

technologically feasible tie-in point that is actively delivering Cable Service as of the date of such 

request for service (the “Service Area”).  The Cable Service will be provided at Grantee’s 

published rate for standard installations if such residence is a Standard Installation.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Grantee shall have the right, but not the obligation, to extend 

the Cable System into any portion of the Franchise Area where another operator is providing Cable 

Service or into any annexed area which is not contiguous to the Service Area.  Grantee shall not 

be obligated to provide service to any area where it is financially or technically infeasible to do so.  

Grantee at its discretion may make Cable Service available to businesses within the Service Area.   

6.2 Subscriber Charges for Extensions of the Cable System.  No Subscriber shall be refused 

service arbitrarily.  However, if an area does not meet the density requirements of Section 6.1 

above, the Grantee shall only be required to extend the Cable System to Subscribers in that area if 

the Subscribers are willing to share the capital costs of extending the Cable System.  The Grantee 

may require that payment of the capital contribution in aid of construction borne by such potential 

Subscribers be paid in advance.  Subscribers shall also be responsible for any Standard/non-

standard Installation charges to extend the Cable System from the tap to the residence.  

6.3 New Development Underground.  In cases of new construction or property development 

where utilities are to be placed underground, the Grantor agrees to require as a condition of issuing 

a permit for open trenching to any developer or property owner that such developer or property 

owner give Grantee at least thirty (30) days prior written notice of such construction or 

development, and of the particular dates on which open trenching will be available for Grantee’s 

installation of conduit, pedestals and/or vaults, and laterals to be provided at Grantee’s expense.  

Grantee shall also provide specifications as needed for trenching.  Costs of trenching and 

easements required to bring service to the development shall be borne by the developer or property 

owner; except that if Grantee fails to install its conduit, pedestals and/or vaults, and laterals within 

fifteen (15) working days of the date the trenches are available, as designated in the written notice 

given by the developer or property owner, then should the trenches be closed after the fifteen day 

period, the cost of new trenching is to be borne by Grantee. 

117



 6 

 

6.4 Annexation.  The Grantor shall promptly provide written notice to the Grantee of its 

annexation of any territory which is being provided Cable Service by the Grantee or its affiliates.  

Such annexed area will be subject to the provisions of this Franchise upon sixty (60) days’ written 

notice from the Grantor, subject to the conditions set forth below and Section 6.1 above.  The 

Grantor shall also notify Grantee in writing of all new street address assignments or changes within 

the Franchise Area.  Grantee shall within ninety (90) days after receipt of the annexation notice, 

pay the Grantor franchise fees on revenue received from the operation of the Cable System to 

provide Cable Services in any area annexed by the Grantor if the Grantor has provided a written 

annexation notice that includes the addresses that will be moved into the Franchise Area in an 

Excel format or in a format that will allow Grantee to change its billing system.  If the annexation 

notice does not include the addresses that will be moved into the Franchise Area, Grantee shall 

pay franchise fees within ninety (90) days after it receives the annexed addresses as set forth above.  

All notices due under this section shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested to the 

addresses set forth in Section 15.7 with a copy to the Director of Government Affairs.  In any audit 

of franchise fees due under this Franchise, Grantee shall not be liable for franchise fees on annexed 

areas unless and until Grantee has received notification and information that meets the standards 

set forth in this section. 

6.5 Service Standards.  Upon reasonable request of the Grantor, not more than once annually 

and subject to applicable confidentiality protections, Grantee shall meet with Grantor to review 

maps showing the location of Grantee’s Cable Systems within the Town of Paonia. 

SECTION 7 

Construction and Technical Standards 

7.1 Compliance with Codes.  All construction practices and installation of equipment shall be 

done in accordance with all applicable sections of the National Electric Safety Code. 

7.2 Construction Standards and Requirements.  All of the Grantee’s Equipment shall be 

installed, located, erected, constructed, reconstructed, replaced, removed, repaired, maintained and 

operated in accordance with good engineering practices and performed by experienced 

maintenance and construction personnel. 

7.3 Safety.  The Grantee shall at all times employ ordinary care and shall use commonly 

accepted methods and devices preventing failures and accidents which are likely to cause damage. 

7.4 Network Technical Requirements.  The Cable System shall be designed, constructed and 

operated so as to meet those technical standards adopted by the FCC relating to Cable Systems 

contained in part 76 of the FCC’s rules and regulations as may be amended from time to time. 

SECTION 8 

Conditions on Street Occupancy 

8.1 General Conditions.  Grantee shall have the right to utilize existing poles, conduits and 

other facilities whenever possible, and shall not construct or install any new, different, or additional 

poles, conduits, or other facilities on public property provided Grantee is able to access existing 

poles, conduits, or other facilities on reasonable terms and conditions. 

118



 7 

 

8.2 Underground Construction.  The facilities of the Grantee shall be installed underground 

in those Service Areas where existing telephone and electric services are both underground at the 

time of system construction.  In areas where either telephone or electric utility facilities are 

installed aerially at the time of system construction, the Grantee may install its facilities aerially 

with the understanding that at such time as the existing aerial facilities are required to be placed 

underground by the Grantor, the Grantee shall likewise place its facilities underground.  In the 

event Grantor or any agency thereof directly or indirectly reimburses any utility for the placement 

of cable underground or the movement of cable, Grantee shall be similarly reimbursed. 

8.3 Construction Codes and Permits.  Grantee shall obtain all legally required permits before 

commencing any construction work, including the opening or disturbance of any Street within the 

Franchise Area, provided that such permit requirements are of general applicability and such 

permitting requirements are uniformly and consistently applied by the Grantor as to other public 

utility companies and other entities operating in the Franchise Area.  The Grantor shall cooperate 

with the Grantee in granting any permits required, providing such grant and subsequent 

construction by the Grantee shall not unduly interfere with the use of such Streets.  

Notwithstanding the above, the Grantee may set off any administrative permit fees or other fees 

required by the Grantor related to the Grantee’s use of Grantor rights-of-way against the franchise 

fee payments required under Section 10.1 of this Franchise. 

8.4 System Construction.  All transmission lines, equipment and structures shall be so 

installed and located as to cause minimum interference with the rights and reasonable convenience 

of property owners and at all times shall be kept and maintained in a safe, adequate and substantial 

condition, and in good order and repair.  The Grantee shall, at all times, employ ordinary care and 

use commonly accepted methods and devices for preventing failures and accidents which are likely 

to cause damage, injuries, or nuisances to the public.  Suitable barricades, flags, lights, flares or 

other devices shall be used at such times and places as are reasonably required for the safety of all 

members of the public.  Any poles or other fixtures placed in any public way by the Grantee shall 

be placed in such a manner as not to interfere with the usual travel on such public way.  

8.5 Restoration of Public Ways.  Grantee shall, at its own expense, restore any damage or 

disturbance caused to the public way as a result of its operation, construction, or maintenance of 

the Cable System to a condition reasonably comparable to the condition of the Streets immediately 

prior to such damage or disturbance.   

8.6 Tree Trimming.  Grantee, or its designee shall have the authority to trim trees on public 

property at its own expense as may be necessary to protect its wires and facilities.  Trimming 

activities shall at all times be done with care and commonly accepted methods for protection of 

the trees and public safety during and after the trimming. 

8.7 Relocation for the Grantor.  The Grantee shall, upon receipt of reasonable advance 

written notice, to be not less than ten (10) business days, protect, support, temporarily disconnect, 

relocate, or remove any property of Grantee when lawfully required by the Grantor pursuant to its 

police powers.  Grantee shall be responsible for any costs associated with these obligations to the 

same extent all other users of the Grantor rights-of-way are responsible for the costs related to the 

relocation of their facilities. 

119



 8 

 

8.8 Relocation for a Third Party.  The Grantee shall, on the request of any Person holding a 

lawful permit issued by the Grantor, protect, support, raise, lower, temporarily disconnect, relocate 

in or remove from the Street as necessary any property of the Grantee, provided that the expense 

of such is paid by any such Person benefiting from the relocation and the Grantee is given 

reasonable advance written notice to prepare for such changes.  The Grantee may require such 

payment in advance.  For purposes of this subsection, “reasonable advance written notice” shall 

be no less than ten (10) business days in the event of a temporary relocation and no less than one 

hundred twenty (120) days for a permanent relocation. 

8.9 Reimbursement of Costs.  If funds are available to any Person using the Streets for the 

purpose of defraying the cost of any of the foregoing, the Grantor shall reimburse the Grantee in 

the same manner in which other Persons affected by the requirement are reimbursed.  If the funds 

are controlled by another governmental entity, the Grantor shall make application for such funds 

on behalf of the Grantee. 

8.10 Emergency Use.  Grantee shall comply with 47 U.S.C. 544(g) and all regulations issued 

pursuant thereto with respect to an Emergency Alert System (“EAS”).   

SECTION 9 

Service and Rates 

9.1 Phone Service.  The Grantee shall maintain a toll-free telephone number and a phone 

service operated to receive complaints and requests for repairs or adjustments at any time. 

9.2 Notification of Service Procedures.  The Grantee shall furnish each Subscriber at the time 

service is installed, written instructions that clearly set forth information concerning the procedures 

for making inquiries or complaints, including the Grantee’s name, address and local telephone 

number.  Grantee shall give the Grantor notice of any changes in rates, programming services or 

Channel positions in accordance with applicable law. 

9.3 Rate Regulation.  Grantor shall have the right to exercise rate regulation to the extent 

authorized by law, or to refrain from exercising such regulation for any period of time, at the sole 

discretion of the Grantor.  If and when exercising rate regulation, the Grantor shall abide by the 

terms and conditions set forth by the FCC.  Nothing herein shall be construed to limit the Grantee’s 

ability to offer or provide bulk rate discounts or promotions. 

9.4 Continuity of Service.  It shall be the right of all Subscribers to continue receiving Cable 

Service insofar as their financial and other obligations to the Grantee are honored, and subject to 

Grantee’s rights under Section 15.2 of this Franchise. 

SECTION 10 

Franchise Fee 

10.1 Amount of Fee.  Grantee shall pay to the Grantor an annual franchise fee in an amount 

equal to three percent (3%) of the annual Gross Revenue.  Franchise fees may be passed through 

to Subscribers as a line item on Subscriber bills or otherwise as Grantee chooses, consistent with 

federal law.  The amount of franchise fee and the method of calculation shall be equal when 

compared to the amount or method of calculation of the franchise fee in any other cable franchise 

120



 9 

 

or authorization to provide video service granted by Grantor.  In the event any other cable franchise 

or authorization to provide video service provides for a lesser franchise fee than this Franchise, 

Grantee’s obligation to pay a franchise fee under this Section 10.1 shall be reduced by an 

equivalent amount. 

10.2 Payment of Fee.  Payment of the fee due the Grantor shall be made on an annual basis, 

within forty-five (45) days of the close of each calendar year.  The payment period and the 

collection of the franchise fees that are to be paid to the Grantor pursuant to the Franchise shall 

commence sixty (60) days after the Effective Date of the Franchise as set forth in Section 15.12.  

In the event of a dispute, the Grantor, if it so requests, shall be furnished a statement of said 

payment, reflecting the Gross Revenues and the applicable charges. 

10.3 Accord and Satisfaction.  No acceptance of any payment by the Grantor shall be construed 

as a release or as an accord and satisfaction of any claim the Grantor may have for additional sums 

payable as a franchise fee under this Franchise. 

10.4 Limitation on Recovery.  The period of limitation for recovery of any franchise fee 

payable hereunder shall be three (3) years from the date on which payment by the Grantee was 

due. 

SECTION 11 

Transfer of Franchise 

11.1 Franchise Transfer.  The Franchise granted hereunder shall not be assigned, other than 

by operation of law or to an entity controlling, controlled by, or under common control with the 

Grantee, without the prior consent of the Grantor, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld 

or delayed.  No such consent shall be required, however, for a transfer in trust, by mortgage, by 

other hypothecation, or by assignment of any rights, title, or interest of the Grantee in the Franchise 

or Cable System to secure indebtedness.  Within thirty (30) days of receiving a request for transfer, 

the Grantor shall notify the Grantee in writing of any additional information it reasonably requires 

to determine the legal, financial and technical qualifications of the transferee.  If the Grantor has 

not taken action on the Grantee’s request for transfer within one hundred twenty (120) days after 

receiving such request, consent by the Grantor shall be deemed given. 

SECTION 12 

Records 

12.1 Inspection of Records.  Grantee shall permit any duly authorized representative of the 

Grantor, upon receipt of advance written notice, to examine during normal business hours and on 

a non-disruptive basis any and all of Grantee’s records maintained by Grantee as is reasonably 

necessary to ensure Grantee’s compliance with the material terms of this Franchise.  Such notice 

shall specifically reference the subsection of the Franchise that is under review so that the Grantee 

may organize the necessary books and records for easy access by the Grantor.  The Grantee shall 

not be required to maintain any books and records for Franchise compliance purposes longer than 

one (1) year, provided that Grantee shall retain books and records relevant to the payment of the 

Franchise Fee for a period of three (3) years.  The Grantee shall not be required to provide 

Subscriber information in violation of Section 631 of the Cable Act.  The Grantor agrees to treat 

121



 10 

 

as confidential any books, records or maps that constitute proprietary or confidential information 

to the extent Grantee makes the Grantor aware of such confidentiality.  If the Grantor believes it 

must release any such confidential books, records, or maps in the course of enforcing this 

Franchise, or for any other reason, it shall advise Grantee in advance so that Grantee may take 

appropriate steps to protect its interests.  Until otherwise ordered by a court or agency of competent 

jurisdiction, the Grantor agrees that, to the extent permitted by State and federal law, it shall deny 

access to any of Grantee’s books, records, or maps marked confidential, as set forth above, to any 

Person. 

SECTION 13 

Public, Educational and Governmental Access 

13.1 Access Channel.  Grantee shall make available to the Grantor, within one hundred eighty 

(180) days of a written request, the use of one (1) dedicated Public, Educational and Governmental 

(“PEG”) Access channel in accordance with Section 611 of the Cable Act.  Such PEG channel 

shall be used for non-commercial community programming related to educational and/or 

governmental activities.  Grantor shall have complete control over the content, scheduling, 

administration and all other programming aspects of the PEG channel, and may delegate such 

functions, or a portion of such functions, to an appropriate designee.  Grantee shall not exercise 

any editorial control over PEG channel programming.   Grantee shall carry the PEG channel on 

the lowest level of Cable Service. 

SECTION 14 

Enforcement or Revocation 

14.1 Notice of Violation.  If the Grantor believes that the Grantee has not complied with the 

terms of the Franchise, the Grantor shall first informally discuss the matter with Grantee.  If these 

discussions do not lead to resolution of the problem, the Grantor shall notify the Grantee in writing 

of the exact nature of the alleged noncompliance (the “Violation Notice”). 

14.2 Grantee’s Right to Cure or Respond.  The Grantee shall have thirty (30) days from 

receipt of the Violation Notice to (i) respond to the Grantor, contesting the assertion of 

noncompliance, or (ii) to cure such default, or (iii) if, by the nature of default, such default cannot 

be cured within the thirty (30) day period, initiate reasonable steps to remedy such default and 

notify the Grantor of the steps being taken and the projected date that they will be completed. 

14.3 Public Hearing.  If the Grantee fails to respond to the Violation Notice received from the 

Grantor, or if the default is not remedied within the cure period set forth above, the Board shall 

schedule a public hearing if it intends to continue its investigation into the default.  The Grantor 

shall provide the Grantee at least twenty (20) days prior written notice of such hearing, which 

specifies the time, place and purpose of such hearing, notice of which shall be published by the 

Clerk of the Grantor in a newspaper of general circulation within the Grantor in accordance with 

subsection 15.8 hereof.  At the hearing, the Board shall give the Grantee an opportunity to state its 

position on the matter, present evidence and question witnesses, after which it shall determine 

whether or not the Franchise shall be revoked.  The public hearing shall be on the record and a 

written transcript shall be made available to the Grantee within ten (10) business days.  The 

122



 11 

 

decision of the Board shall be made in writing and shall be delivered to the Grantee.  The Grantee 

may appeal such determination to an appropriate court, which shall have the power to review the 

decision of the Board de novo.  The Grantee may continue to operate the Cable System until all 

legal appeals procedures have been exhausted.   

14.4 Enforcement.  Subject to applicable federal and State law, in the event the Grantor, after 

the hearing set forth in subsection 14.3 above, determines that the Grantee is in default of any 

provision of the Franchise, the Grantor may: 

A. Seek specific performance of any provision, which reasonably lends itself to such 

remedy, as an alternative to damages; or 

B. Commence an action at law for monetary damages or seek other equitable relief; or 

C. In the case of a substantial default of a material provision of the Franchise, seek to 

revoke the Franchise itself in accordance with subsection 14.5 below. 

14.5 Revocation. 

A. Prior to revocation or termination of the Franchise, the Grantor shall give written 

notice to the Grantee of its intent to revoke the Franchise on the basis of a pattern 

of noncompliance by the Grantee, including one or more instances of substantial 

noncompliance with a material provision of the Franchise.  The notice shall set forth 

the exact nature of the noncompliance.  The Grantee shall have sixty (60) days from 

such notice to either object in writing and to state its reasons for such objection and 

provide any explanation or to cure the alleged noncompliance.  If the Grantor has 

not received a satisfactory response from Grantee, it may then seek to revoke the 

Franchise at a public hearing.  The Grantee shall be given at least thirty (30) days 

prior written notice of such public hearing, specifying the time and place of such 

hearing and stating its intent to revoke the Franchise.  The public hearing shall be 

conducted in accordance with the requirements of Section 14.3 above. 

B. Notwithstanding the above provisions, the Grantee reserves all of its rights under 

federal law or regulation. 

C. Upon revocation of the Franchise, Grantee may remove the Cable System from the 

Streets of the Grantor, or abandon the Cable System in place. 

SECTION 15 

Miscellaneous Provisions 

15.1 Compliance with Laws.  Grantor and Grantee shall conform to all applicable state and 

federal laws and rules regarding cable television as they become effective. Grantee shall also 

conform with all generally applicable Grantor ordinances, resolutions, rules and regulations 

heretofore or hereafter adopted or established during the entire term of the Franchise.  In the event 

of a conflict between Grantor ordinances, resolutions, rules or regulations and the provisions of 

this Franchise, the provisions of this Franchise shall govern. 

123



 12 

 

15.2 Force Majeure.  The Grantee shall not be held in default under, or in noncompliance with 

the provisions of the Franchise, nor suffer any enforcement or penalty relating to noncompliance 

or default, where such noncompliance or alleged defaults occurred or were caused by 

circumstances reasonably beyond the ability of the Grantee to anticipate and control.  This 

provision includes, but is not limited to, severe or unusual weather conditions, fire, flood, or other 

acts of God, strikes, work delays caused by failure of utility providers to service, maintain or 

monitor their utility poles to which Grantee’s Cable System is attached, as well as unavailability 

of materials and/or qualified labor to perform the work necessary. 

15.3 Minor Violations.  Furthermore, the parties hereby agree that it is not the Grantor’s 

intention to subject the Grantee to forfeitures or revocation of the Franchise for violations of the 

Franchise where the violation was a good faith error that resulted in no or minimal negative impact 

on the Subscribers within the Franchise Area, or where strict performance would result in practical 

difficulties or hardship to the Grantee which outweighs the benefit to be derived by the Grantor 

and/or Subscribers. 

15.4 Action of Parties.  In any action by the Grantor or the Grantee that is mandated or 

permitted under the terms hereof, such party shall act in a reasonable, expeditious and timely 

manner.  Furthermore, in any instance where approval or consent is required under the terms 

hereof, such approval or consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

15.5 Equal Protection.  If any other provider of cable services or video services (without regard 

to the technology used to deliver such services) is lawfully authorized by the Grantor or by any 

other State or federal governmental entity to provide such services using facilities located wholly 

or partly in the public rights-of-way of the Grantor, the Grantor shall within thirty (30) days of a 

written request from Grantee, modify this Franchise to insure that the obligations applicable to 

Grantee are no more burdensome than those imposed on the new competing provider.  If the 

Grantor fails to make modifications consistent with this requirement, Grantee’s Franchise shall be 

deemed so modified thirty (30) days after the Grantee’s initial written notice.  As an alternative to 

the Franchise modification request, the Grantee shall have the right and may choose to have this 

Franchise with the Grantor be deemed expired thirty (30) days after written notice to the Grantor.  

Nothing in this Franchise shall impair the right of the Grantee to terminate this Franchise and, at 

Grantee’s option, negotiate a renewal or replacement franchise, license, consent, certificate or 

other authorization with any appropriate government entity.  Nothing in this Section 15.5 shall be 

deemed a waiver of any remedies available to Grantee under federal, state or municipal law, 

including but not limited to Section 625 of the Cable Act, 47 U.S.C. § 545. 

15.6 Change in Law.  Notwithstanding any other provision in this Franchise, in the event any 

change to state or federal law occurring during the term of this Franchise eliminates the 

requirement for any person desiring to provide video service or Cable Service in the Franchise 

Area to obtain a franchise from the Grantor, then Grantee shall have the right to terminate this 

Franchise and operate the system under the terms and conditions established in applicable law.  If 

Grantee chooses to terminate this Franchise pursuant to this provision, this Franchise shall be 

deemed to have expired by its terms on the effective date of any such change in law, whether or 

not such law allows existing franchise agreements to continue until the date of expiration provided 

in any existing franchise. 

124



 13 

 

15.7 Notices.  Unless otherwise provided by federal, State or local law, all notices pursuant to 

this Franchise shall be in writing and shall be deemed to be sufficiently given upon delivery to a 

Person at the address set forth below, or by U.S. certified mail, return receipt requested, nationally 

or internationally recognized courier service such as Federal Express or electronic mail 

communication to the designated electronic mail address provided below.  As set forth above, 

notice served upon the Grantor shall be delivered or sent to: 

Grantor:  Town of Paonia, Colorado 

Town Administrator 

214 Grand Avenue 

Paonia, Colorado 81428  

    Email: corinne@townofpaonia.com 

 

Copy to:  Bo James Nerlin 

Devor & Plumhoff 

  130 N. Park Ave. 

  Montrose, CO 81401 

  bo@coloradowestlaw.com  

     Grantee:  John Lee 

Senior Manager, Government Affairs 

6399 S. Fiddler’s Green Circle, 2nd Floor 

Greenwood Village, Colorado 80111 

         Email:   John.L.Lee@Charter.com 

                 Copy to:  Charter Communications  

       Attn: Vice President, Government Affairs 

       12405 Powerscourt Drive 

St. Louis, MO 63131 

 

15.8 Public Notice.  Minimum public notice of any public meeting relating to this Franchise or 

any such grant of additional franchises, licenses, consents, certificates, authorizations, or 

exemptions by the Grantor to any other Person(s) to provide Cable Services, video services, or 

other television services utilizing any system or technology requiring use of the public rights of 

way shall be by publication at least once in a newspaper of general circulation in the area at least 

ten (10) days prior to the meeting and a posting at the administrative buildings of the Grantor. 

15.8.1 Grantor shall provide written notice to Grantee within ten (10) days of Grantor’s 

receipt from any other Person(s) of an application or request for a franchise(s), license(s), 

consent(s), certificate(s), authorization(s), or exemption(s) to provide Cable Services, video 

services, or other television services utilizing any system or technology requiring use of the public 

125

mailto:Corinne@townofpaonia.com
mailto:bo@coloradowestlaw.com


 14 

 

rights of way.  Any public hearings to consider such application or request shall have the same 

notice requirement as outlined in Paragraph 15.7 above. 

15.9 Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 

Franchise is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, 

such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall 

not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Franchise. 

15.10 Entire Agreement. This Franchise and any Exhibits hereto constitute the entire agreement 

between Grantee and the Grantor and they supersede all prior or contemporaneous agreements, 

representations or understandings (whether written or oral) of the parties regarding the subject 

matter hereof.   

15.11  Administration of Franchise.  This Franchise is a contract and neither party may take 

any unilateral action that materially changes the mutual promises and covenants contained herein.  

Any changes, modifications or amendments to this Franchise must be made in writing, signed by 

the Grantor and the Grantee. Any determination by the Grantor regarding the interpretation or 

enforcement of this Franchise shall be subject to de novo judicial review.  

15.12 Effective Date.  The Franchise granted herein will take effect and be in full force from 

such date of acceptance by Grantee recorded on the signature page of this Franchise.  If any fee or 

grant that is passed through to Subscribers is required by this Franchise, such fee or grant shall go 

into effect sixty (60) days after the Effective Date of this Franchise. 

15.13 No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing in this Franchise is intended to confer third-party 

beneficiary status on any person other than the parties to this Franchise to enforce the terms of this 

Franchise. 

Signatures on next page.  

 

 

 

 

Considered and approved this ___ day of ____________, 20_____. 

 

 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

 

Signature:  

 

Name/Title:  

 

 

 

 

Accepted this ___ day of __________________, _20_____, subject to applicable federal 

and State law. 

126



 15 

 

 

 

Spectrum Pacific West, LLC  By:  

Charter Communications, Inc., Its 

Manager 

 

Signature:  

 

Name/Title:  

 

127



 

November 20, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Ordinance 2020-10 - Regulation and Licensing of Marijuana 

Establishments 

Summary:   

Final review and acceptance of the Ordinance establishing regulations and licensing for 

commercial and medicinal marijuana establishments for the Town – pending certification of 

the election results.   

 

Notes: 

The proposed ordinance was reviewed and presented from the Governmental Affairs and 

Public Safety Committee at three (3) previous meetings.  All Board modifications were made, 

included and presented to the Board at the June 23rd meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

128



 

Ordinance 2020-10 Marijuana Establishments Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-10 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO CONCERNING 

THE REGULATION AND LICENSING OF RETAIL MARIJUANA 

ESTABLISHMENTS 

 

WHEREAS, Section 16 of Article XVIII of the Colorado Constitution, also commonly 

known[CF1] as Amendment 64 of 2012, authorizes a system of state licensing for businesses 

engaging in the cultivation, testing, manufacturing and retail sale of marijuana, collectively 

referred to as “marijuana establishments” by the Constitution.   

 

WHEREAS, Subsection 16(5)(f) of Article XVIII allows localities within their respective 

jurisdictions:  to prohibit state licensing of marijuana establishments; to regulate the time, place 

and manner in which marijuana establishments may operate; and to limit the total number of 

marijuana establishments.  The authority of localities to prohibit or regulate marijuana 

establishments within their respective jurisdictions, including the authority to engage in local 

licensing of marijuana establishments, is also reflected in various provisions of the Colorado 

Retail Code, Article 43.4 of Title 12, C.R.S.; and 

 

WHEREAS, at the Special Election held on November 4, 2014, the voters of Paonia have 

determined that the Town of Paonia should allow retail marijuana establishments within the 

Town, subject to zoning restrictions set forth in the Municipal Code and the licensing and other 

limitations, restrictions and regulations provided for in this ordinance. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

TOWN OF PAONIA, as follows: 

 

Section 1.  Chapter 6 of the Paonia Municipal Code is hereby amended to add a new Article 4, to 

read as follows: 

 

ARTICLE 4 

 

PAONIA RETAIL MARIJUANA CODE 

 

Sections: 

 6-4-10  Purpose and legislative intent 

 6-4-20  Defined terms 

 6-4-30  Effective date; applicability 

 6-4-40  Local licensing authority 

 6-4-50  Relationship to Colorado Retail Marijuana Code; other laws 

 6-4-60  Unlawful acts 

 6-4-70  Classes of licensing authorized 

 6-4-80  Screening and response to state license applications 

 6-4-90  Licensing requirements—provisions applicable to all licenses 

 6-4-100 Location restrictions 

 6-4-110 Signs and advertising 

129



 

Ordinance 2020-10 Marijuana Establishments Page 2 

 

6-4-120 Denial for good cause 

 6-4-130 Transfer of ownership 

 6-4-140 Change of location; modification of premises 

 6-4-150 Term of licenses; renewals 

 6-4-160 Suspension or revocation of license 

 6-4-170 Operating fees 

 6-4-180 Public nuisance 

 

6-4-10   Purpose and legislative intent.  The purpose of this Chapter 6 is to exercise the 

authority of the Town of Paonia to allow state-licensed marijuana establishments to exist in 

Paonia in accordance with the applicable state laws and regulations as well as the additional local 

licensing requirements and other restrictions set forth herein.  This Chapter is adopted pursuant 

to the aforesaid constitutional and statutory authority, as well as the Town’s plenary authority as 

a statutory town to adopt and enforce ordinances under its police power in order to preserve the 

public health, safety and general welfare and its authority to regulate businesses. 

 

6-4-20   Defined terms.   

 

The definitions set forth in Subsection 16 (2) of Article XVIII of the Colorado Constitution as 

well as the Colorado Retail Marijuana Code, § 12-43.4-103, C.R.S., as amended, shall apply 

equally to this Chapter 6.  In addition, the following terms shall have the meanings respectively 

assigned to them: 

 

A. "Alcohol or drug treatment facility" means any facility located within a medical office or 

hospital that has as its primary purpose the counseling of and/or the providing of medical 

services to patients who suffer from addictions to alcohol or drugs. 

 

B. "Childcare center" means a facility maintained for the care of children under the age of 

sixteen (16), including, but not limited to, day camps, nursery schools, day care, preschools and 

playschools.  Such facility shall be licensed by the Colorado Department of Human Services. 

 

C. "Colorado Retail Marijuana Code" means Article 43.4 of Title 12 of the Colorado 

Revised Statutes, as amended, including all Rules promulgated pursuant to the Colorado Retail 

Marijuana Code as set forth in the Colorado Code of Regulations Department of Revenue 

Marijuana Enforcement Division 1 CCR 212.2. 

 

D. "Retail marijuana establishment" means a retail marijuana store, a retail marijuana 

cultivation facility, a retail marijuana products manufacturing facility, or a retail marijuana 

testing facility. 

 

E. "Retail marijuana store" means an entity licensed to purchase retail marijuana from a 

retail marijuana cultivation facility and to purchase retail marijuana product from a retail 

marijuana products manufacturing facility and to sell retail marijuana and retail marijuana 

product to consumers. 

 

130



 

Ordinance 2020-10 Marijuana Establishments Page 3 

 

F.  "School" means a public or private elementary, middle, junior high, or high school.  

(Note: "preschools" are included in the Town's definition of "childcare center"). 

 

G. “Land Development Regulations (LDR)” means the land development regulations as 

adopted and updated periodically by the Town of Paonia. 

 

6-4-30   Effective date; applicability. 

 

This Article 4 shall be effective after midnight on December 31, 2020, and shall govern all 

applications submitted to the state licensing authority for licensing of any retail marijuana 

establishment in the Town under the Colorado Retail Marijuana Code on and after that date. 

 

6-4-40   Local licensing authority. 

 

A. The Board of Trustees is hereby designated to act as the local licensing authority for the 

Town regarding retail marijuana establishments.  Under any and all circumstances in which state 

law requires communication to the Town by the state licensing authority or any other state 

agency in regard to the licensing of retail marijuana establishments by the state, or in which state 

law requires any review or approval by the Town of any action taken by the state licensing 

authority, the exclusive authority for receiving such communications and granting such 

approvals shall be exercised by the Board. 

 

B. Under no circumstances shall the Board of Trustees receive or act upon any application 

for local licensing of a retail marijuana establishment in circumstances where the state has failed 

to act in accordance with Section 16 of Article XVIII of the Colorado Constitution, it being the 

intent of this Article that no retail marijuana establishment may lawfully exist in the Town of 

Paonia absent the issuance of a state license and full regulatory oversight of the retail marijuana 

establishment by the state, as well as the Town.  Accordingly, the Board shall not receive or act 

upon any application for licensing submitted independently and in lieu of state licensing if the 

state fails to act within ninety (90) days on any specific application for licensing of a retail 

marijuana establishment in accordance with paragraph 16(5)(g)(III) of Article XVIII of the 

Colorado Constitution. 

 

C. Any decision made by the local licensing authority to grant or deny a license, to revoke 

or suspend a license, or to renew or not renew a license shall be a final decision and may be 

appealed to the district court pursuant to Rule 106(a)(4) of the Colorado Rules of Civil 

Procedure. 

 

6-4-50   Relationship to Colorado Retail Marijuana Code; other laws.   

 

Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, this Article 4 incorporates the requirements and 

procedures set forth in the Colorado Retail Marijuana Code.  In the event of any conflict between 

the provisions of this Article 4 and the provisions of the Colorado Retail Marijuana Code or any 

other applicable state or local law, the more restrictive provision shall control, except that the 

location requirements and restrictions set forth in Section 6-4-100 shall apply in all situations of 

conflict between such provisions and the provisions of state law or regulation regarding matters 

131



 

Ordinance 2020-10 Marijuana Establishments Page 4 

 

where the exercise of discretion by local jurisdictions is granted by the constitution or laws of the 

State of Colorado. 

 

6-4-60  Unlawful acts. 

 

A. It shall be unlawful for any person to operate any retail marijuana establishment in the 

Town without a license duly issued therefor by the state licensing authority under the Colorado 

Retail Marijuana Code and compliance with any and all applicable state laws. 

 

B. It shall be unlawful for any person to operate any retail marijuana establishment in the 

Town without a license duly issued therefor by the Board of Trustees under this Article 4 and 

compliance with any and all applicable Town laws. 

 

C. It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in any form of business or commerce 

involving the cultivation, processing, manufacturing, storage, sale, distribution or consumption 

of marijuana other than those forms of businesses and commerce that are expressly contemplated 

by Sections 14 and 16 of Article XVIII of the Colorado Constitution and/or the Colorado Retail 

Marijuana Code. 

 

D. It shall be unlawful for any licensed retail marijuana establishment to sell, serve, 

distribute or initiate the transport of retail marijuana or retail marijuana products at any time 

other than between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. daily. 

 

6-4-70    Classes of licensing authorized.   

 

For the purpose of regulating the cultivation, manufacture, testing, distribution, offering for sale, 

and sale of retail marijuana, the Board of Trustees, at the Board’s discretion, upon application in 

the prescribed form made to the Board, may issue and grant to the applicant a local license from 

any of the following classes, and the Town hereby authorizes the issuance of the licenses of the 

following classes by the state licensing authority within the Town, subject to the provisions, 

limitations and restrictions set forth in this Article 4: 

 

A. Retail marijuana store.  

 

6-4-80    Screening and response to state license applications. 

 

A. Upon receipt of notice from the state licensing authority of any application for a license 

under the Colorado Retail Marijuana Code, the Town Clerk shall: 

 

1. Determine, in consultation with the Town Administrator, or his/her designee, 

whether or not the location proposed for licensing complies with any and all 

applicable zoning and land use laws of the Town, and any and all restrictions on 

location of retail marijuana establishments set forth in this Article 4.  If the Town 

makes an initial determination that the proposed license would be in violation of 

any zoning law or other restriction on location set forth in the Town’s laws, the 

Town shall, no later than forty-five (45) days from the date the application was 

132



 

Ordinance 2020-10 Marijuana Establishments Page 5 

 

originally received by the state licensing authority, notify the state licensing 

authority and the applicant for state licensing in writing that the application is 

disapproved by the Town.  The failure of the Town to make such a determination 

upon the initial review of a state license application shall not preclude the Town 

from later determining that proposed license is in violation of Town’s zoning laws 

or any other restriction on location set forth in Town laws, and disapprove the 

issuance of a state or Town license on this basis. 

 

2. For any application that is not disapproved as provided in paragraph 1 of this 

Subsection A, the Town shall notify the state licensing authority and the applicant 

for state licensing in writing that the Town’s further consideration of the 

application is subject to a local licensing process, and that the Town’s ultimate 

decision to approve or disapprove the issuance of the state license for a retail 

marijuana establishment proposed to be located in the Town of Paonia will be 

subject to the completion of the local licensing process, as set forth in this Article 

4, after which the Town will notify the state licensing authority in writing of 

whether or not the retail marijuana establishment proposed in the application has 

or has not been approved by the Town. 

 

6-4-90    Licensing requirements—provisions applicable to all licenses. 

 

A. Criteria for licensing.  The Board of Trustees shall consider and act upon all local license 

applications in accordance with the standards and procedures set forth in this Article 4.  The 

Board may deny any application for a license that is not in full compliance with the Colorado 

Retail Marijuana Code, this Article 4, and any other applicable state or Town law or regulation.  

The Board also shall deny any application that contains any false or incomplete information. 

 

B. Application forms and supplemental materials.  All applications for local licensing shall 

be made upon forms provided by the Town and shall include such supplemental materials as 

required by the Colorado Retail Marijuana Code and rules adopted pursuant thereto, including by 

way of example: proof of possession of the licensed premises, disclosures related to ownership 

of the proposed business, fingerprints of the applicants, building plans, and security plans.  To 

the extent any of the foregoing supplemental materials have been included with the applicant’s 

state license application and forwarded to the Town by the state licensing authority, the Town 

Clerk may rely upon the information forwarded from the state without requiring re-submittal of 

the same materials in conjunction with the local license application.  The Town may, at the 

Town’s discretion, require additional documentation associated with the application as may be 

necessary to enforce the requirements of the Colorado Retail Marijuana Code and this Article 4. 

 

C. Tax bond.  Before the Board of Trustees issues a Town license to an applicant for a retail 

marijuana establishment license, the applicant shall procure and file with the Town evidence of 

good and sufficient bond in the amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000) with corporate surety 

thereon duly licensed to do business with the State of Colorado, approved as to form by the 

Town’s Attorney, and conditioned that the applicant shall report and pay all Town sales and use 

taxes as provided by law.  A corporate surety shall not be required to make payments to the 

Town claiming under such bond until a final determination of failure to pay taxes due to the 

133



 

Ordinance 2020-10 Marijuana Establishments Page 6 

 

Town has been made by the Finance Officer or a court of competent jurisdiction.  All bonds 

required pursuant to this subsection shall be renewed at such times as the bondholder's license is 

renewed.  The renewal may be accomplished through a continuation certificate issued by the 

surety.  A cash bond in the amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000) may be deposited with the 

Finance Officer in lieu of a surety bond. 

 

D. Area maps.  All applications for retail marijuana establishment licensing submitted 

pursuant to this Article 4 shall include an area map drawn to scale indicating land uses of other 

properties within one thousand (1,000) feet of each boundary of the lot or parcel upon which the 

applicant proposes a licensed premises.  The map shall depict the proximity of the property to be 

used as the licensed premises to any school or childcare facility of the type referenced in Section 

6-4-100. 

 

E. Notice of applications to departments and agencies.  Upon receipt of an application for 

any class of local retail marijuana establishment license, the Town Clerk shall give notice of the 

application to the Town Administrator, the Finance Officer, the Building Official, the Chief of 

the Paonia Police Department, the Chief of the Paonia Fire Protection District #2 and appropriate 

county or local health officials.  Any applicant for a license under this Article 4 shall obtain any 

and all necessary permits, licenses and other regulatory approvals from the other affected Town 

departments and agencies prior to the issuance of a license under this Article 4.  The Town also 

will consider any recommendations made by the Paonia Fire Protection District #2. 

 

F. Background checks and determination of good character and state residency.  Prior to the 

issuance of any local license, the Board of Trustees shall make a finding as to the good moral 

character of the applicant and compliance with state residency requirements in accordance with 

the standards and procedures set forth in the Colorado Retail Marijuana Code.  In so doing, the 

Board may incorporate into its findings any findings as to good character and residency 

previously made by the state licensing authority and rely upon such findings in making its 

determination.  The Board shall not be required to perform a criminal background check if the 

state licensing authority has already performed a criminal background check on the applicant. 

 

G. A license pursuant to this ordinance does not eliminate the need for the licensee to obtain 

other Town licenses and permits, including, but not limited to: 

 

1. Any land use approval, if applicable; 

 

2. State sales tax license; or 

 

3. Building, mechanical, plumbing, electrical or fire permit(s). 

 

6-4-100   Location restrictions 

 

A. Permitted locations for sales.  All retail marijuana establishment licenses shall be issued 

for a specific fixed location which shall be designated the licensed premises.  Except as provided 

in Subsection D, all sales, deliveries and other transfers of marijuana and marijuana products by 

a licensee shall be made at or from the licensed premises. 

134



 

Ordinance 2020-10 Marijuana Establishments Page 7 

 

 

B. Distance from schools.  No retail marijuana establishment license shall be granted with 

respect to a proposed licensed premises that would be located within one thousand (1,000) feet of 

any school that existed at the time of the filing of a complete application for a retail marijuana 

establishment license with the Town Clerk. 

 

C. Distance from certain childcare facilities.  No retail marijuana establishment license shall 

be granted with respect to a proposed licensed premises that would be located within one 

thousand (1,000) feet of any licensed residential child care facility, as defined in Title 26 of the 

Colorado Revised Statutes, that existed at the time of the filing of a complete application for a 

retail marijuana establishment license with the Town. 

 

D. No mobile facilities and restrictions regarding deliveries. 

 

1. No retail marijuana establishment shall be located in a movable or mobile vehicle 

or structure. 

 

2. No retail marijuana or marijuana product shall be delivered in the Town unless 

such delivery is by a retail marijuana establishment licensed by the state to 

another retail marijuana establishment licensed by the state and the Town and 

such delivery is specifically permitted by the Colorado Retail Marijuana Code. 

 

3. All sales and distribution of retail marijuana and marijuana products by a licensed 

retail marijuana store shall occur only upon the licensed premises, and the 

licensee shall be strictly prohibited from delivering retail marijuana or marijuana 

products to any person at any other location. 

 

E. Measurement of distance.  Any distance specified in Subsection B or C of this section 

shall be computed by direct measurement from the nearest property line of the lot or parcel upon 

which a school or child care facility referenced in Subsection B or C is situated to the nearest 

property line of the land used or proposed for use as a licensed retail marijuana establishment, 

using a route of direct pedestrian access, measured as a person would walk safely and properly, 

without trespassing, with right angles at crossings and with the observance of traffic regulations 

and lights. 

 

F. Places where retail marijuana establishments are prohibited.  No licensed retail marijuana 

establishment shall be operated within the boundaries of any residential zone district of the Town 

as those boundaries exist at the time any complete application for any class of retail marijuana 

establishment license is filed with the Town Clerk.  Retail marijuana stores shall only be 

operated within the boundaries of a C-1 or C-2 commercial zone district of the as those 

boundaries exist at the time any complete application is filed with the Town Clerk.   [CF2] 

 

6-4-110   Signs and advertising. 
 

A. Any person or premises licensed as a retail marijuana store shall comply with all Town 

ordinances regulating signs and advertising. In addition, no licensed retail marijuana store shall 

135



 

Ordinance 2020-10 Marijuana Establishments Page 8 

 

use any advertising material that is misleading, deceptive, or false, or that, as evidenced either by 

the content of the advertising material or by the medium or the manner in which the advertising 

is disseminated, is designed to appeal to minors. 

 

B. For purposes of this section, the terms "advertise," "advertising" or "advertisement" mean 

the act of drawing the public's attention to a retail marijuana store or retail marijuana products 

manufacturer in order to promote the sale of retail marijuana by the store or the manufacturer. 

 

 

C. Except as otherwise provided in this Subsection C, it shall be unlawful for any person 

licensed under this Title or any other person to advertise any retail marijuana or retail marijuana 

product anywhere in the Town where the advertisement is visible to members of the public from 

any street, sidewalk, park or other public place, including advertising utilizing any of the 

following media: any billboard or other outdoor general advertising device as defined by the 

zoning code; any sign mounted on a vehicle, any hand-held or other portable sign; or any 

handbill, leaflet or flier directly handed to any person in a public place, left upon a motor vehicle, 

or posted upon any public or private property without the consent of the property owner.  The 

prohibition set forth in this paragraph shall not apply to: 

 

1. Any sign located on the same zone lot as a retail marijuana store which exists 

solely for the purpose of identifying the location of the retail marijuana store and 

which otherwise complies with the Town’s sign code, Chapter 18, Article 6 of the 

Town Municipal Code, and any other applicable Town laws and regulations; or 

 

2. Any advertisement contained within a newspaper, magazine, or other periodical 

of general circulation within the Town;  

 

3. Advertising which is purely incidental to sponsorship of a charitable event by a 

retail marijuana store or a retail marijuana products manufacturer; or 

 

6-4-120   Denial for good cause. 

 

A. The Board of Trustees shall have authority to refuse to issue or renew any retail 

marijuana establishment license for good cause, subject to judicial review.  For purposes of this 

section, the term “good cause” means: 

 

1. The applicant has violated, does not meet, or has failed to comply with any of the 

terms, conditions, or provisions of the Colorado Retail Marijuana Code or any 

rules and regulations promulgated pursuant thereto, or this Title 4 or any rules and 

regulations promulgated pursuant to this Title; 

 

2. Evidence that the issuance or renewal of the license will adversely impact the 

health, welfare or public safety of the immediate neighborhood in which the retail 

marijuana establishment is located or is proposed to be located; or 

 

136



 

Ordinance 2020-10 Marijuana Establishments Page 9 

 

3. Evidence that the licensee or applicant has failed to comply with any special 

terms or conditions that were placed upon the license pursuant to an order of the 

State Licensing Authority or an order of the Local Licensing Authority. 

 

B. Any decision of the Board of Trustees to approve or deny any license application shall be 

in writing, stating the reasons therefor. 

 

6-4-130   Transfer of ownership.  Transfer of ownership of any local license issued 

pursuant to this Article 4 shall be governed by the standards and procedures set forth in the 

Colorado Retail Marijuana Code and any regulations adopted pursuant thereto, and the Board of 

Trustees shall administer transfers of local licenses in the same manner as the state licensing 

authority administers transfers of state licenses. 

 

6-4-140   Change of location; modification of premises.  Change of location of any 

license or any modification of the licensed premises shall be governed by the standards and 

procedures set forth in the Colorado Retail Marijuana Code and any regulations adopted pursuant 

thereto, and the Board of Trustees shall administer applications to change location or modify 

premises in the same manner as the state licensing authority administers changes of location and 

modification of premises for state licenses.  Any proposed modification and any new location to 

which an existing licensed business is transferred shall fully comply with the location 

requirements and the requirements for conformance with current zoning as set forth this Title 4. 

 

6-4-150 Term of licenses; renewals.  Any local license issued pursuant to this Title shall 

be valid for a period of one (1) year from the date of issuance.  Any renewal of the license shall 

be governed by the standards and procedures set forth in the Colorado Retail Marijuana Code 

and any regulations adopted pursuant thereto, and the Board of Trustees shall administer license 

renewals in the same manner as the state licensing authority administers renewals of state 

licenses. 

 

6-4-160   Suspension or revocation of license. 

 

A. A license may be suspended or revoked by the Board of Trustees for any of the following 

reasons: 

 

1. Fraud, misrepresentation, or a false statement of material fact contained in the 

license application;  

 

2. A violation of any Town, State or Federal law or regulation, other than federal 

law or regulation concerning the production, transportation, possession, sale or 

distribution of marijuana that conflicts with Amendment 64;  

 

3. A violation of any of the terms and conditions of the license, including any 

special conditions of approval imposed upon the license;  

 

4. A violation of any of the provisions set forth in this ordinance; or 

 

137



 

Ordinance 2020-10 Marijuana Establishments Page 10 

 

5. Cessations of operation at the center for more than thirty (30) days. 

  

B. The Town shall notify the licensee of the issuance of a show cause order to suspend or 

revoke the license.  Notice shall be given by mailing a copy, or served by the Paonia Police 

Department of the order to the licensee by registered mail to the address shown on the license.  

Notice is deemed to have been properly given upon mailing. 

 

C. A hearing shall then be scheduled before the Board of Trustees within forty-five (45) 

days of the notice of the show cause order.  Such hearing may be continued for good cause. 

The burden of proof at the hearing shall be on the Town. 

 

D. If the Board of Trustees finds a preponderance of the evidence that the allegations in the 

show cause order are sustained, the Board of Trustees shall issue such order in writing to the 

licensee within ten (10) days. 

 

E. Upon such findings, the Board of Trustees shall have the power to revoke, suspend, 

and/or place additional reasonable conditions on the license. 

 

6-4-170   Operating fees.  Operating fees for retail marijuana stores, retail marijuana 

cultivation facilities, retail marijuana products manufacturers, and retail marijuana testing 

facilities are as follows: 

 

A. Annual operating fee, per year: Five thousand dollars ($5,000) for all classes of licenses, 

payable in advance on or before the date the license is issued or renewed, as the case may be. 

 

B. Criminal background check fee, per person checked: Actual costs. 

 

C. Transfer of ownership: Two hundred fifty dollars ($250), plus cost of background check. 

 

D. Transfer of location: Seven hundred fifty dollars ($750). 

 

E. Modification of premises: Five hundred dollars ($500). 

 

F. Administration Fee: Seventy-five dollars ($75). 

 

G.  License application fee: as provided under the Colorado Retail Marijuana Code. 

 

All such fees shall be non-refundable. 

 

6-4-180   Public nuisance. 
 

A. The unlawful cultivation, manufacturing, sale, offer for sale, or distribution of retail 

marijuana without a license is hereby declared to be a nuisance which may be abated or 

otherwise dealt with in accordance with the provisions of the Paonia Municipal Code. 

 

 

138



 

Ordinance 2020-10 Marijuana Establishments Page 11 

 

Section 2.  Severability.   

 

  If any provision, clause, sentence or paragraph of this Ordinance or the application 

thereof to any person or circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the 

other provisions of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 

application, and, to this end, the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.  

 

Section 3.  Repeal of Prior Ordinances.  

 

All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  

 

Section 4.  Ordinance Effect. 
 

Existing ordinances or parts of ordinances covering the same matters as embraced in this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed and any and all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with 

the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed; provided, however, that the repeal of any 

ordinance or parts of ordinances of the Town shall not revive any other section of any ordinance 

or ordinances hereto before repealed or superseded, and further provided that this repeal shall not 

affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or committed in 

violation of any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of this Ordinance.  

 

Section 5.  Effective Date. 

 

This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after passage.       

 

INTRODUCED, READ AND REFERRED before the Board of Trustees for the 

Town of Paonia, Colorado, on the 23rd day of June 2020. 

 

 

HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Town of Paonia Board of Trustees for 

the Town of Paonia, Colorado, on the 24th day of November 2020. 

  

 

TOWN OF PAONIA 
 

      By:________________________________ 

       MARY BACHRAN, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

J. CORINNE FERGUSON, Town Clerk 

 

 

139



 

November 20, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

2020 Sanitary Survey Follow-up 

Summary:   

Provided in the packet for a second review is the sanitary survey completed by CDPHE.  Also 

included is the update on the status of clearing the deficiencies and violations.  

 

Notes: 

 

To significantly improve meeting administrative reporting deadlines, we have taken the 

following actions: 

 

Filled the open position for water and sewer (employee began early November) – to include 

training and certification for operation of all treatment plants. 

 

Set required in-office hours for public works director in order to train public works clerk and 

complete reporting requirements in a timely fashion. 

 

Modified sampling schedule to allow for any resubmittal of samples to occur within the 

timeline required by CDPHE. 

 

We will continue to evaluate and revise as necessary to meet the requirements of the state and 

do our part to continue to work towards healing the frustration in the community regarding the 

functions of our departments. 

 

Please remember, while administrative deadlines have not been consistently met and there are 

deficiencies noted and suggestions given to better operate the water treatment system, at no 

time has the Town failed a sample test or had any issues with the water provided to our 

community. 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

140



2020 Water Treatment Plants Sanitary Survey Update – 11/24/2020 

In order of notation, beginning on page 2 of the Sanitary Survey. 

 

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES: 

1. T901 - Cross Connection - Clock Water Treatment Plant 

 1” RPZ has been received and installed, waiting to have it tested 

 

2. T119 - Clock Operation 

 Working with WestWater Engineering regarding location of operation valves and ordered parts to 

expose block and bleed assembly 

 Established daily and weekly logs to be completed and submitted to Health Department 

 

3. T119 - Lamborn WTP 

 ordered parts to expose block and bleed assembly 

 

4. F310 - Lamborn 2 Million Tank 

 Completed – Supplied photo evidence of the duckbill valve on overflow pipe to inspector. 

 

5. F310 -.5 Million Tank 

 12-inch cap ordered from Winwater Works to fully disconnect and cap abandoned tank.  

 

6. R514 – Monitoring & Recordkeeping and Data Verification 

 Began process utilizing the CDPHE monitoring plan wizard 

VIOLATIONS: 

1. R520 – Monitoring & Recordkeeping and Data Verification 

 Moving to electronic shared data collection and storage via Google Docs spreadsheets 

 

2. R531 – Monitoring & Recordkeeping and Data Verification  

 Completed – the correct reagent was being used and tested at same level of inspector.  Noted was the 

manufacturer expiration date had passed.  The expired reagent has been disposed of and replaced. 

 

3. M613 – Management 

 2019 BPCCC showing new backflow will be submitted as soon as testing is completed 

 

141



 

November 20, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Town Attorney Contract 

Summary:   

Proposed fixed-price contract for Town Attorney services. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

142



 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, 

AND BO JAMES NERLIN,  P.C. 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) made as of the ___ day of November 2020, is by 

and between the TOWN OF PAONIA, a municipal corporation acting by and through its Board 

of Trustees (the “Town”), and BO JAMES NERLIN, P.C., a Colorado Professional Corporation 

(“Law Firm”).  

 

 WHEREAS, the Town and Law Firm intend that Law Firm, as hereinafter specified, shall 

serve as General Legal Counsel for the Town.  

 

 WHEREAS, Bo James Nerlin, shall serve as the primary attorney contact for the Town.   

 

 WHEREAS Bo James Nerlin is an attorney duly licensed to practice in the State of 

Colorado. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises contained herein and other good 

and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the 

parties agree as follows: 

 

SECTION I – TERMS 

 

 A. Effective Date: January 1, 2021. 

 

B.  Term:  The term of this Agreement shall be from January 1, 2021 through  

December 31, 2021 unless either party provides a notice to terminate.    

 

 C. Services and Compensation:  

 

1. Law Firm shall provide general legal services to the Town for a fixed price 

amount of $50,000.00 for the Term of this Agreement.  Payments shall be to be 

made to Law Firm in monthly installment of $4,166.67.  This fixed price 

amount shall cover all of Law Firm’s responsibilities unless or except any 

extraordinary matters are presented.  In the event any extraordinary matters are 

presented, attorney services shall be provided at an hourly rate of $195.00 per 

hour (the “Town Rate”), and paralegal services at $100.00 an hour.    Law Firm’s 

regular hourly rate is $260.00 per hour (the “Law Firm’s Rate”). Both the Town 

and the Law Firm shall agree in writing prior to the Law Firm instituting the 

Town Rate on extraordinary matters.   

 

2. Law Firm shall charge the Town Rate, with the exception of fees that are 

eligible to be charged back to a third party by the Town (“Charge-Back Fees”), 

Law Firm and the Town shall reach an agreement prior to Law Firm billing the 

Law Firm’s Rate for Charge-Back Fees.  For fees to be charged back to third 

143



 

Professional Services Agreement - Page 2 of 7 

parties, the Town shall initially pay Law Firm only the Town Rate.  Charge-

Back Fees shall be charged back to the third party, which shall be responsible 

for paying the entire amount of Charge-Back Fees.  Notwithstanding that 

Charge-Back Fees may be paid by a third party, payment by any third party of 

the Charge-Back Fees shall not create an attorney-client relationship between 

Law Firm any third party paying such Charge-Back Fees.  The Town shall not 

grant to any third-party owing Charge-Back Fees to Law Firm a permit, license 

or other Town discretionary permission until such third party has paid all 

Charge-Back Fee due and owing to Law Firm.  

 

 SECTION II– LAW FIRM’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

A. All work to be performed by Law Firm shall be authorized verbally or in writing by 

the appropriately authorized Town representative(s).   

  

B. Description of Law Firm’s legal services: (1) Provide drafting and/or review and 

approval of contracts, MOU’s, IGA’s, etc.; (2) Attend Town Board of Trustees  

meetings; (3) Attend other Town  meetings at the request of the Mayor or the Town 

Staff; (4) Participate in negotiations regarding Town affairs; (5) Provide overall legal 

oversight to department Directors, Town Staff, Mayor and the Board; (6) Provide 

oversight on legal matters related to employment/HR; (7) Assist in negotiations with 

other entities - Delta County, state and federal agencies, etc.; (8) Keep the Board and 

Town Staff informed on various changes in the law affecting municipalities and 

provide legal planning to proactively minimize the Town’s exposure to various 

potential liabilities; (8) Such other matters as the Town Board and Town Staff may 

deem necessary and appropriate, from time to time.    

 

C. Law Firm shall inform the Town in writing of any additional firms it intends to hire 

to perform work in connection with this Agreement and shall keep the Town 

informed on any changes or additions to this information.  The Town shall approve 

any additional firms prior to commencement of work by such firms as per this 

Agreement. Nothing contained herein shall create any contractual relationship 

between any additional firm(s) and the Town. 
 

D. Law Firm shall review each project and Law Firm’s records to ensure against any 

conflict of interest that might prevent Law Firm from fully and faithfully advising 

and representing the Town. If any potential conflict or differing interest exists or 

arises, now or in the future, Law Firm shall properly advise the Town Staff and/or 

Town Board of Trustees. 

 

E. Law Firm shall identify, verbally or in writing, the attorney within its organization 

primarily responsible for implementing and overseeing each project and all other 

attorneys and paralegals/paraprofessionals who will do significant work on each 

project. Staffing may change from time to time; however, Law Firm shall promptly 

advise the Town Staff and specific Town departments of such changes. 

 

144



 

Professional Services Agreement - Page 3 of 7 

F. In performing this Agreement, the hours Law Firm and its staff are to work on any 

given day or project are entirely within Law Firm’s control. The Town shall rely 

upon Law Firm to devote the time, skill and effort reasonably necessary to fulfill 

the purpose of this Agreement.  

 

G. Law Firm shall determine all pertinent filing dates or other deadlines for each 

project. Law Firm shall comply with all applicable filing dates or deadlines or 

obtain sufficient extensions to protect the Town's interests. 

 

H. Full and regular communications are essential to this Agreement. Law Firm and its 

staff, the Town Staff and other representatives and Town Board of Trustees shall 

actively address all developments that could significantly affect a project. Except 

in an emergency, Law Firm and its staff shall make no significant decision on 

direction, mechanics or strategy for a project without prior communication and 

discussion with the appropriate Town representative(s).   

 

I. Insurance Requirements: Before beginning, and while performing under this 

Agreement, Law Firm shall maintain, without cost to the Town, the following 

insurance: 

 

1. For all attorneys within its organization, professional liability insurance that 

complies with C.R.C.P. 265(a)(3).  

 

2. Law Firm shall not cancel, materially change or fail to renew insurance 

coverage. Law Firm shall notify the Town of any material reduction or 

exhaustion of aggregate limits.  

 

SECTION III – THE TOWN’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

A. The Town shall provide full information, including detailed scope of work, as to its 

requirements for the services. 

 

B. The Town shall give prompt notice to Law Firm whenever the Town observes or 

otherwise becomes aware of any discrepancies in the services provided. 

 

C. Law Firm is not liable for delays in performance that are caused by the Town, the 

Town’s consultants or events that are outside the control of the parties and could not 

be avoided by the exercise of due care. 

 

SECTION IV  MUTUAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE TOWN AND LAW FIRM 
 

A. This Agreement does not guarantee to Law Firm any work, except as authorized in 

accordance with Section I above, or create an exclusive contract. 

 

B. The services and any and all interests contemplated under this Agreement shall not 

be assigned, sublet or transferred without the written consent of the Town. 

145



 

Professional Services Agreement - Page 4 of 7 

 

C. Law Firm and any and all of its personnel utilized by Law Firm under the terms of 

this Agreement shall remain the agents and employees of Law Firm and are not, nor 

shall they be construed to be, agents or employees of the Town. 

 

D. The Town recognizes that all technical data, evaluations, reports and other work 

products are instruments of Law Firm’s services and not designed for use other than 

what is intended by or reasonably foreseeable to the parties to this Agreement.  The 

Town shall make no other use of Law Firm’s work product without the prior approval 

of Law Firm.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, such data, evaluations, report and other 

work products, along with the files generated by Law Firm pursuant to this 

Agreement are to remain the Property of the Town. 

 

SECTION V – BILLING AND PAYMENT 

 

 At the beginning of each month, for services rendered the prior month, Law Firm shall 

provide to the Town invoices, which reflect all of the fees and out-of-pocket expenses Law Firm 

has incurred on behalf of the Town for the previous calendar month. Prior to the end of each month, 

the Town shall remit payment for all invoices due and payable unless otherwise discussed with 

Law Firm or Law Firm’s representatives, either verbally or through written correspondence.  

 

SECTION VI - SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
 

A. Confidentiality: During and after the term of this Agreement, Law Firm shall not 

disclose to third parties any confidential information or data. Law Firm shall treat 

such information as the private and privileged records of the Town and Law Firm. 

Without Town's express consent, Law Firm shall not release such information to 

any third party by statement, deposition, as a witness or otherwise. 

 

B. Licenses: Law Firm shall maintain all licenses necessary to perform under this 

Agreement, including attorneys’ licenses to practice law in the State of Colorado. 

 

C. Severability: To the extent the parties may perform and accomplish their 

obligations within the intent of this Agreement, its terms are severable. Should any 

term or provision be invalid or become inoperable for any reason, such invalidity 

or failure shall not affect the validity of any other terms or provisions. Waiver of 

any breach of a term shall not indicate a waiver of any other term or the same term 

upon later breach. 
 

SECTION VII  LAWS AND ORDINANCES 
 

 Law Firm, at all times, agrees to observe all applicable federal and state laws, Ordinances of 

the Town of Paonia, and all rules and regulations issued pursuant thereto, that in any manner affect 

or govern the services contemplated under this Agreement. 

 

 

146



 

Professional Services Agreement - Page 5 of 7 

SECTION VIII  TERMINATION OF CONTRACT 

 

A. Termination of Agreement:  Either party shall be entitled to terminate this 

Agreement upon giving the other party written notice of intent to terminate.  Should 

Law Firm terminate the Agreement, Law Firm agrees to continue representation of 

the Town on all matters pending at the time of termination until satisfactory 

substitution of counsel by the Town.   

 

B. Effect of Termination:  In the event of termination, all finished and unfinished work 

product(s) prepared by Law Firm pursuant to this Agreement shall become the sole 

property of the Town, provided Law Firm is compensated in accordance with this 

Agreement for all work performed in accordance with this Agreement up to the 

effective date of termination. Law Firm shall not be liable with respect to the 

Town’s subsequent use of any incomplete work product, provided Law Firm has 

notified the Town in writing of the incomplete status of such work product. 

 

SECTION IX  CHANGE IN SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

 The Town may from time to time require changes in the scope of the services of Law Firm 

to be performed herein. Compensation to Law Firm payable hereunder shall be adjusted to reflect 

any change in the scope of services. 

 

SECTION X  EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

 

A. Law Firm shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 

on the basis of race, color, national origin, ancestry, age, sex (gender), religion, creed 

or physical or mental disability.  Law Firm may adhere to lawful equal opportunity 

guidelines in selecting employees, provided that no person is illegally discriminated 

against on any of the preceding bases. This provision shall govern, but shall not be 

limited to, recruitment, employment, promotion, demotion and transfer and 

advertising therefor; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other compensation; and 

selection for training, including apprenticeship. Law Firm shall post, in all places 

conspicuous to employees and applicants for employment, notices provided by the 

State of Colorado setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 

 

B. All solicitations and advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of Law 

Firm shall state that Law Firm is an equal opportunity employer.  

 

C. Law Firm shall cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all subcontracts for 

any work contemplated by this Agreement or deemed necessary by Law Firm, so that 

such provisions are binding upon each sub-consultant. 

 

D. Law Firm shall keep such records and submit such reports concerning the racial and 

ethnic origin of employees and of applicants for employment as the United States, 

the State of Colorado, the Town of Paonia, or their respective agencies may require. 

 

147



 

Professional Services Agreement - Page 6 of 7 

E. Law Firm shall comply with such rules, regulations and guidelines as the United 

States, the State of Colorado, the Town of Paonia, or their respective agencies may 

issue to implement these requirements. 

 

SECTION XI – ILLEGAL ALIENS 

 

In compliance with C.R.S. § 8-17.5-102, Law Firm represents, warrants and agrees: 

 

A. That Law Firm shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to 

perform work under this Agreement, shall provide the Town with duly executed 

LAWFUL PRESENCES AFFIDAVITS of its employees upon request, and shall 

not enter into a contract with a subcontractor that fails to certify to Law Firm that 

the subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to 

perform work under this Agreement. 

 

B. That Law Firm has confirmed the employment eligibility of current employees and 

shall, within twenty (20) days after hiring any new employee to perform work under 

this Agreement, affirm that Law Firm has examined the legal work status of such 

employee, retained file copies of the documents required by 8 U.S.C. § 1324a, and 

not altered or falsified the identification documents for such employee.  Law Firm 

shall provide a written, notarized copy of the affirmation to the Town upon request. 

 

C. If Law Firm obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under 

this Agreement knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, Law Firm 

shall: (i) notify the subcontractor and the Town within three (3) days that Law Firm 

has actual knowledge that a subcontractor is employing or contracting with an 

illegal alien; and (ii) terminate the subcontract with the subcontractor if within three 

(3) days of receiving the notice required pursuant to this Section XI, the 

subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien; except 

that Law Firm shall not terminate the contract with the subcontractor if during such 

three (3) days the subcontractor provides information to establish that it has not 

knowingly employed or contracted with an illegal alien. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day 

and year first above written. 

 

 

ATTEST:     TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

 

________________________________ By:                             

J. CORINNE FERGUSON, Town Clerk        MARY BACHRAN, Mayor 

 

      Date: ________________ 

 

 

148



 

Professional Services Agreement - Page 7 of 7 

      BO JAMES NERLIN, P.C.    

       

      By:  _________________________________ 

                    BO JAMES NERLIN, President 

      

      Date:  ________________ 

149



 

November 20, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Town Administrator Six-Month Review – Timeline 

Summary:   At the request of Finance & Personnel Committee, included in the packet are the 

goals identified by the Board and objectives set by the Administrator to work towards/meet the 

goals identified as well as the evaluation forms for completion and submittal to either Trustee 

Knutson or Budinger by November 30th.   

 

 

Notes: 

 

Community input regarding the Town Administrators performance can be submitted to Mayor 

Mary Bachran at Town Hall or via e-mail at Maryb@townofpaonia.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

150



 Paonia Town Administrator Evaluation  

    July 8, 2020 

 
Three Month Evaluation          October 2020 
Goals: 

1. Smooth operation of Administrative and Government functions 
Objectives: 

a. Foster a courteous, efficient working atmosphere at Town Hall 
b. Oversee master plan progress 
c. Supervise completion of asset inventory and GIS mapping project 
d. Prepare for November ballot – marijuana questions 
e. Represent the Town in County issues  

 County-wide housing survey 
 One Delta organization 
 DOLA funding for Town projects 

 
2. Effective interactions with Public, Businesses and Community 

Objectives: 
a. Efficient management of public requests 
b. Continue COVID mitigation measures and carry out Governor’s and CDPHE 

orders and communicate to public 
c. Enhance business opportunities within the above standards 
d. Investigate Space to Create relationships at State level. 
e. Post updated committee and Board calendars  
f. Manage emergencies effectively, and communicate with public 

 
 

3. Consistent management of Staff 
Objectives: 

a. Address manpower issues 
b. Review defined job descriptions/objectives 
c. Regular evaluations that provide positive feedback  
d. Provide opportunities for training 
e. Ensure timely completion of all required reporting 

 
 

4. Effective Trustee Relations 
Objectives: 

a. Timely communication through board packets 
b. Provide advice and analysis of options for pending Board decisions 
c. Provide background information for committee consideration 

 
 
 
 
 

151



 Paonia Town Administrator Evaluation  

    July 8, 2020 

 
Narrative Evaluation 

 
1. How effective was the Administrator in achieving short-term goals for this rating period? 

 
 
 

2. What would you identify as the Administrator’s strength(s), expressed in terms of the 
main results achieved during the rating period? 

 
 
 
 

3. What performance area(s) would you identify as an area for improvement? 
 
 
 
 

4. What constructive suggestions or assistance can you offer the Administrator to enhance 
her performance? 

 
 
 

5. What other comments do you have for the Administrator: e.g., priorities, expectations.  
List two to three performance objectives which you feel are important for the Town 
Administrator to work on for the coming year. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

6. On a scale of 1 to 5, where 1 is poor, 3 is satisfactory, and 5 is extraordinary, how would 
you rate the Administrator’s overall performance during this period? 
 

 1 = Poor:  fails to meet most expectations 
 2 = Fair:  Meets most expectations 
 3 = Good:  Meets all expectations 
 4 = Very Good:  Meets or exceeds all expectations 
 5 = Excellent:  Exceeds all expectations 
 
                    
 1 2 3 4 5 
  

152



 Paonia Town Administrator Evaluation  

    July 8, 2020 

 
 
Six Month Evaluation         January 2021 
 
Goals: 

1. Smooth operation of Administrative and Government Functions 
Objectives: 

a. Foster a courteous, efficient working atmosphere at Town Hall 
b. Act as Town’s representative in County issues 
  County-wide housing survey 
  One Delta County organization 
  DOLA funding for Town projects 
c. Ensure continued progress on master plan 
d. Implement procedures in accordance with November election results 
e. Oversee completion of 2021 Budget 

 
2. Effective interactions with Public, Businesses and Community 

Objectives: 
a. Implement recommendations from water study 
b. Continue to improve overall public communication via internet and face-to-face 

opportunities 
c. Follow Town support for public projects such as Poulos Park, Skatepark, etc. 
d. Schedule public presentation of master plan 
e. Manage emergency situations effectively and communicate with public 

 
3. Consistent management of Staff 

Objectives: 
a. Review job descriptions and current objectives for staff 
b. Provide opportunities for training 
c. See that all personnel evaluations are done in a timely manner 

 
 

4. Effective Trustee relations 
Objectives: 

a. Timely communication through board packets 
b. Provide advice and analysis of options for pending Board decisions 
c. Provide background information for committee consideration 
d. Continue to meet with Board Committees as requested. 
 
  

 
 
 
 

153



 Paonia Town Administrator Evaluation  

    July 8, 2020 

 
 

 
Narrative Evaluation 

 
1. How effective was the Administrator in achieving short-term goals for this rating period? 

 
 
 

2. What would you identify as the Administrator’s strength(s), expressed in terms of the 
main results achieved during the rating period? 

 
 
 
 

3. What performance area(s) would you identify as an area for improvement? 
 
 
 
 

4. What constructive suggestions or assistance can you offer the Administrator to enhance 
her performance? 

 
 
 

5. What other comments do you have for the Administrator: e.g., priorities, expectations.  
List two to three performance objectives which you feel are important for the Town 
Administrator to work on for the coming year. 

````````` 
 
 
 
 

6. On a scale of 1 to 5, where 1 is poor, 3 is satisfactory, and 5 is extraordinary, how would 
you rate the Administrator’s overall performance during this period? 
 

 1 = Poor:  fails to meet most expectations 
 2 = Fair:  Meets most expectations 
 3 = Good:  Meets all expectations 
 4 = Very Good:  Meets or exceeds all expectations 
 5 = Excellent:  Exceeds all expectations 
 
                    
 1 2 3 4 5 

154



Corinne Ferguson Three Month Evaluation – Town Administrator/Clerk 

September 22, 2020 – As determined via the Board of Trustees and presented by Mayor Mary Bachran 

Strengths 

• Excellent communications skills. 

 This is especially true with social media and Corinne's interactions with members of the public. This is 

also true in her communications with the Board. Sha clearly explains issues and is timely in her posts 

and updates to the community 

• Professionalism. 

Corinne treats everyone with a high degree of professionalism. She remains calm in the face of 

dissention and crisis and treats everyone with a high degree of respect. She accepts criticism and works 

to correct errors or make changes when needed. 

• Reaching out to other governmental agencies 

Corinne has started to form relationships with other governmental agencies, including other mayors and 

the Board of County Commissioners. 

• Skillful handling of transition 

Corinne is working to transition from being a peer with other staff to being their supervisor. The mayor 

has noted that she has made significant progress in this regard and is setting limits and enforcing them 

when she receives push back from the staff. She is beginning to exercise her disciplinary authority when 

needed. 

 

 

Area of Improvement 

• Public Works 

Corinne has not managed the staff of Public Works as effectively as needed. She has made more 

progress with Administrative staff and needs to make the same strides with Public Works to ensure that 

the parks are taken care of adequately. 

• Increased delegation 

Corinne still takes on tasks that could be delegated to other staff. While some of this is a training issue, 

more should be done as time goes on and staff gains proficiency. 

• Board communication 

Corinne needs to communicate with the Board in a timelier manner when it comes to street closures. 

• Minutes 

The minutes still have mistakes and need to be reviewed. A process that allow staff to learn while 

producing an acceptable product is needed. 

• Coaching/mentoring relationship 

Corinne is urged to find someone with whom she can garner help and information. This may come from 

the list serves that she frequents, or other relationships with people in her same position. This may also 

come from watching webinars and taking online classes. 

 

Priorities  

1. Complete the Master Plan 

2. See the water grants through their completion cycles as quickly as possible. Begin the process of setting 

up the Water Board 

3. Set up the Board of Appeals for the building department 

4. Get the new website up and running with appropriate information 

5. Hire the unfilled position as soon as the budget allows. Decide what the best set of skills and duties will 

be for this position 

6. Find a mentoring relationship and continue with her education, including finishing her last week of 

Clerk training. 

155



Priorities based on October 2020 Council Evaluation – Updated 11/20/2020 

 

  

1. Complete the Master Plan 

 

Inputting public meeting and other data into initial master plan template. 

Timeline: Preliminary draft master plan update to Planning Commission – June 2021 (must allow time to 

include results of inventories and analyses currently underway). Trustee and community review and input of 

draft mater plan short-form update. Consider funding final master plan update in 2022 budget. 

 

2. See the water grants through their completion cycles as quickly as possible. Begin the process of setting 

up the Water Board 

 

SGM GIS Mapping scheduled for substantial completion mid-November. 

SGM Capital Improvement Plan/Inventory Project estimated completion by end of December. 

JDS Hydro Infrastructure Analysis estimated completion end of March 2021. 

 

Water Board application is on the website and open for applicants extended to December 4th, scheduled for 

Board appointment on December 15th agenda. 

 

3. Set up the Board of Appeals for the building department 

Drafting ordinance modification language creating a dual Zoning Board of Adjustments and Board of Appeals – 

the function is similar for both Boards yet neither review of an appeal would cause a conflict of interest.  Our 

Boards tend to consistently have vacancies and meet rarely.  The combining of two Boards give the community 

and council a full Board providing recommendations and decisions. Timeline: scheduled for Board review at 

December 15th meeting. 

 

4. Get the new website up and running with appropriate information 

Complete: https://townofpaonia.colorado.gov 

 

5. Hire the unfilled position as soon as the budget allows. Decide what the best set of skills and duties will 

be for this position 

Job description underway.  Planning to advertise after the first of 2021. 

 

6. Find a mentoring relationship and continue with her education, including finishing her last week of 

Clerk training. 

Mentoring relationship established.  Meeting monthly beginning December 4th with Delta County managers and 

administrators. Classes ongoing.  Completed 3-day Colorado Municipal Clerks Conference on-line conference 

October 16th. Sessions attended:  

Legislative Updates - An overview of the 2020 Regular Legislative Session will be presented, with focus on the 

legislation relative to municipalities and city/town clerks, such as elections, liquor and 

marijuana licensing, records, and open meetings. 

 

Strengths Finder – Discover how to make a difference by doing more of what attendees naturally do best, 

acquiring tools and insights that will help them apply their strengths to achieve greater productivity, 

engagement and happiness, and developing strategies to help them use their strongest strengths to accomplish 

goals. 

 

CMCA Business Meeting –  

 
156

https://townofpaonia.colorado.gov/


Meet the Press – Rockford Gray’s Jennifer Miller will help prepare you to "Meet the Press" with 

professionalism and confidence. A former network news reporter, Jennifer will cover the 

foundational tools for effectively engaging with reporters and public audiences to get 

your story told. The session includes the Rules of the Game: what everyone needs to 

know before talking to the media. Jennifer discusses what motivates reporters, how to 

focus the story, set Your agenda and create key messages that will satisfy most reporters’ 

questions as well as advance your public relations and policy goals. 

 

 You Can’t Make This Stuff Up - This session will examine lessons learned and how clerks can address 

challenging situations in the future. The role of a municipal clerk inevitably brings new and sometimes 

uncharted territory, so please join us for this session to learn about tactfully navigating new challenges. 
 

157



 

November 18, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Regular Minutes: 

October 27, 2020 

Special Minutes: 

November 3, 2020 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

158



 

 

Work Session Minutes 

Regular Town Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

October 27, 2020 

  

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

The Special Meeting held Tuesday, October 27, 2020, was called to order at 5:37 p.m. by Mayor 

Mary Bachran, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. Formal Video Record at: 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Jp3eszO0QG4 

 

Roll Call 
Employee Retirement Plan Presentation 

 Empower Retirement representative Shane Squibb presented the new employee 

retirement plan to the Board of Trustees. For a potential switch from Mutual of 

Omaha to Empower Retirement. 

 Employee retirement plan presentation documents were included in the packet. 

 Spoke about who Empower Retirement was.  

 Reviewed the questions given by the Town Administrator.  

 

 

 2021 Budget Work Session - Continued 

 Finance Officer Jones spoke regarding the water production costs. Documents 

were handed out in the meeting. 

 Discussed the grant for the lining of the tank. - DOLA match is 50% - $250,000 - 

the lining of the tank needs to be done in 2 years. 

 Discussed the debt reserve. 

 Raising rates. 

 Treasure King stated that not meeting reserve requirements could pose serious 

risks. Loans could be turned down and a State representative could come in and 

analyze rates and impose them.  

 Trustee Bear would like to see the cost for 2020 water production. 
 

Adjournment 
 The meeting was adjourned by Mayor Bachran at 6:22 pm 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Clerk                          Mary Bachran, Mayor  
 

159



 

  

OCTOBER 27, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Regular Town Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

October 27, 2020 

  

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

The Special Meeting held Tuesday, October 27, 2020, was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor 

Mary Bachran, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. Formal Video Record at: 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Jp3eszO0QG4 

 

Roll Call 

PRESENT 

Mayor Bachran 

Trustee Bear 

Trustee Budinger 

Trustee Knutson 

Trustee Pattison 

Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Meck 

 

Approval of Agenda 
 Agenda Approval 

 

 Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Budinger and unanimously 

carried to approve the agenda as presented.  

 

Announcements  

 Trustee Pattison wanted to clarify her communication statement for the 

Administrator's goal – stating that it was a comment and not a critique in any kind 

of way towards the Administrator. 

 Mayor Bachran wished the chief of police a happy birthday. 

 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 
Shop Safe, Shop Local Recognition: 

 Mayor Bachran presented Shop Safe, Shop Local Recognition to: 

o The Delta County Libraries. 

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

160



 

  

OCTOBER 27, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

o West Elk Wine and Spirit 

o Root and Vine Market 

o High Country Shopper 
  

Visitors & Guests: 

 Loise Doll a concerned citizen stated her concerns regarding the Back the Badge 

proceeds and if they were going to go to the police officers.  

 Aaron Watson a member of the Dark Skies wanted to remind the Board of Trustees 

regarding the dark sky ordinance submission and would like to see steps being made 

towards setting the ordinance in place. 

 Suzanne Watson a concerned citizen stated her concern regarding neighbors installing 

LED lights on their porches and the nuisance this would cause.  

 

Staff Reports 
 Administrator’s Report: 

 COVID-19 update can be seen on Delta County's website. 

 The administrator provides updated information on the Governors' response to 

COVID-19 – see the State of Colorado’s website for detailed information. 

 Updated on the continued research of the municode cost to update the system with 

gender-neutral language and reference to the State Law.  

 The new SIPA website transition has been completed.  

 SGM GIS mapping scheduled for mid-November and the capital improvement 

plan/inventory project estimated to be completed by end of December 2020. 

 JDS Hydro infrastructure analysis is estimated to be completed by end of March 

2021. 

 Water Board applications have been posted on the new website - applications will 

be open until November 13, 2020. 

 

Public Works report: 

 The spring line repair is complete. 

 Work on a storm sewer tie on the 2nd and Grand Avenue intersection will begin 

October 28 - November 9th. 

 Vacuuming leaves have been stopped momentarily due to weather. As soon as 

weather permits vacuuming up leaves resume. 

 The inventory program is still in the works. 

 

Police Report: 

 Police Officers are completing the required training. 

 Chief has been working night shifts for training and will be back on a regular 

schedule starting October 28th. 

 Police Officers will be patrolling the streets on Halloween night and handing out 

candy to the children.  

 Trustee Knutson stated as a reminder to discuss the Judge's salary. 

161



 

  

OCTOBER 27, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 3 

 

 Trustee Meck suggested using a dog shelter named Tailes as a place to take the 

dogs running loose in town.  

 A citizen suggested that there might be dog groomers or volunteers who would 

like to shelter dogs.  

 

Attorney Report: 

 Discussed the Marijuana tax - marijuana ballot initiative. 

 Working on the franchise agreement with Charter Cable and the proposed 

agreement to be presented on November 10th in the board packet. 

 The attorney memorandum was included in the packet.  

 

Disbursements 
 Treasurer’s Report: 

 Reviewed disbursements and payroll  

 Disbursements were included in the packet.  

 Treasure King reiterated the additional covenants and requirements (exhibit F) 

this is concerning the audit requirements of the reserve fund/rate.  

o Under exhibit F - Rate study - it stated that "if Revenues collected during 

the fiscal year are not sufficient to the requirements outlined in the Rate 

Covenant contained in paragraph 5. of Exhibit A of this Loan Agreement, 

the Government agency shall, with 90 days of the end of such fiscal year, 

cause an independent firm of accountants or consulting engineers, to 

prepare a rate study to recommend a schedule of rates, charges" 

o Document of Additional covenants and requirements - Exhibit F was 

included in the packet.  

 

Disbursements Report: 

Motion by Trustee Knutson and seconded by Trustee Budinger and unanimously carried 

to approve the disbursements as provided.  

New Business 
Larksfoot Minor Subdivision- 

o The administrator's report, Minor Subdivision application, and documents 

were included in the packet.  

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

162



 

  

OCTOBER 27, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 4 

 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Budinger, and carried with 5 

ayes and 1 abstain. Voting Abstaining: Trustee Pattison abstained because it is work-

related. 

 

 Colorado Code Consulting Contract- 

Discussion ensued regarding the Colorado Code Consulting Contract - building 

department. Documents related were included in the packet.  

 

Board & Staff discussion points: 

 The current building official Dan Reardon was present and explained the plan 

review fee process. 

 Town Attorney Bo Nerlin stated the boards' option in regards to the Colorado 

Code Consulting contract with the Town.  

o Have an executive session to discuss any legal or negotiations. 

o Board could terminate the contract and the building official will serve to 

the end of the contract - December 2020. 

o Board could negotiate the contract with amendments and direct staff to 

draft a revised contract and present it to the board at the November 1st 

meeting.  

 A suggestion from Trustee Pattison was to add amendments to the contract.  

 A suggestion from Trustee Johnson was to terminate the contract and then amend 

the contract.  

 A suggestion from Trustee Budinger was to terminate the contract and ask 

Colorado Code Consulting to reply to the RFP with the amendment to the 

contract.  

 Trustee Meck was in favor of putting out an RFP.  

 Trustee Knutson has concerns with hiring a new building inspector. 

 

Public Comment: 

 A community member suggested to adopt the Colorado Code Consulting fees and 

upload them on the website.  

 A community member suggested looking into setting up a board of appeals. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Meck and unanimously failed to 

pass to continue contract into the next year 2021 and extend the contract for one year.  

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison   X  

Mayor Bachran      

163



 

  

OCTOBER 27, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 5 

 

 

Motion made by Trustee Pattison to terminate the contract with Colorado Code 

Consulting and propose a revised contract for 3 months with a potential for renewal 

pending additional terms. 

 

Motion amended by Trustee Pattison, Seconded by Trustee Knutson and unanimously 

carried to terminate the contract with Colorado Code Consulting at the end of 2020 and 

ask to establish a 3-month contract with the for the first quarter of 2021 with automatic 

one-month extensions pending negotiations. 

 

Staff Retirement Plan Review and Update- 

The discussion ensued during the work session under the employee staff retirement plan 

review. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Budinger and unanimously 

carried to adopt recommendations of representative Shane Squibb for the employee 

retirement with Empowered Retirement. 

 

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear  X   

Trustee Budinger  X   

Trustee Johnson  X   

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck  X   

Trustee Pattison  X   

Mayor Bachran      

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

164



 

  

OCTOBER 27, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 6 

 

Public Water System Discharge Permit Inspection Results 

 The Public Water System Discharge Permit Inspection Results from the State of 

Colorado and recommendations from staff were included in the packet.  

 No action was required documents were for informational purposes 

Building Permit Fee Structure- 

 Continued discussion by the Board regarding the building permit fee schedule. 

 The proposed fee schedule was included in the packet. 

 The current and proposed permit fee project valuation was in the packet.  

 The three scenarios using existing and proposed structure was included in the 

packet. 

 Trustee Pattison suggested adopting the simple fee schedule.  

 Town Attorney Bo suggested to use information from the 2018 building code and 

have input from the building official.  

 Trustee Knuston and Town Administrator suggested having a meeting with the 

Planning and Zoning Committee regarding this matter. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Bear, and unanimously carried to 

table discussion. 

 

 Revised 2021 Budget Calendar- 

 Discussion ensued by the board on setting the next meeting day and time.  

 Mayor Bachran stated the Board of Trustees budget work session meeting is to 

meet on Tuesday, November 3rd at 2:30 pm 

 

Braver Angels America Hold America Together discussion and possible action item 

Requested by Trustee Knutson.  

 Discussion ensued by Trustee Knuston regarding his requesting the Town signing 

the Braver Angels letter of support and that the board approves placement of a 

banner at the Twin Lakes property. 

 The support letter was included in the packet. 

 Two board members were not in favor of signing the letter or the placement of the 

banner. 

 Three community members were not in favor of the town signing the letter.  

 Suggestions were made and encouraged individuals to sign the letter.  

 

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

165



 

  

OCTOBER 27, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 7 

 

Consent Agenda 

 Regular Minutes: 

10/13/2020 

Special Minutes: 

8/20/2020 

 

Motion by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Budinger and unanimously carried to 

approve consent agenda with corrections to October 13, 2020, regular minutes - add 

bullet points of Constantine Herchfields statement, add the rest of the Planning and 

Zoning commissioner members, and separate the Tree board from the committee reports. 

Mayor’s Report 
 Mayor’s Report 

 Honoring the Capital Christmas Tree event. 

o Lights and sirens starting from the Highway down into Grand Ave. 

o Paonia Junior-Senior High choir will be singing.  

o Purchased 2 banners with the monies from COVID-19 and the banner 

located near the High School was vandalized. 

 Administrator Fergusons goals are ready to send to the Mayor.  

Committee Reports 
Finance & Personnel report: 

 Meeting October 28, 2020, at 9:30 pm 

 

Governmental Affairs & Public Safety report: 

 Meeting November 9th at 3:00 pm 

 

Public Works-Utilities-Facilities report: 

 Met October 19, 2020, with the Administrator and Public Works Director. 

 PHS meter is in the works in getting completed.  

 Boxelder is in the works in getting completed. 

 Discussed the mapping project. 

 Inventory of equipment is in the works 

 The bulk station is in the works. 

 Discussed the creation of the water storage project. 

 Discussed the water production. 

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

166



 

  

OCTOBER 27, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 8 

 

 No meeting has been set.  

 

Space to Create: 

 Meeting one more time. 

 

Tree Board: 

 Met October 20th 

 The creation of a draft tree management plan is in the works. 

 The board would like to update the web with an updated pathway. 

 Paula Martin is working on the process for the tree city 2021 application. 

Adjournment 
 The meeting was adjourned by Mayor Bachran at 8:41 pm 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Clerk                          Mary Bachran, Mayor  

167



 

  

NOVEMBER 03, 2020 TOWN BOARD WORK SESSION MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Town Board Work Session 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

November 03, 2020 

  

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

The Special Meeting held Tuesday, November 03, 2020, was called to order at 2:32 p.m. by 

Mayor Mary Bachran, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. Formal Video Record at: 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=50Dmk1LSAIw 
 

 

 

 

 

Roll Call 
PRESENT 

Mayor Bachran 

Trustee Bear 

Trustee Budinger 

Trustee Knutson 

Trustee Pattison 

Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Meck 

 

 

 

Approval of Agenda 
Agenda Approval 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Budinger and unanimously carried 

to approve the agenda as presented.  

 

 

 

Regular Business 
 2021 Budget Work Session – Continued: 

 The work session discussion ensued regarding a potential rate modification to the 

water, sewer, trash, and other sections of the budget. 

 
 

 

 

Board & Staff discussion points: 

 

Discussion on the Trash reserve fund spreadsheet. The spreadsheet was in the packet. 

 Trustee Pattison read her statement letter. The letter was included in the packet. 

 Discussed the Delta County landfill rate increase - this caused an increase in the 

town's tipping fee.  

 Discussed reallocating the payroll from the trash fund to the general furnd. 

 The salaries are allocated towards what the employees work in the most. 

 Trustee Pattison suggested an opt-out option. 

 

 

 

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

168

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=50Dmk1LSAIw


 

  

NOVEMBER 03, 2020 TOWN BOARD WORK SESSION MINUTES 2 

 

 

Motion by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Johnson and carried with 4 ayes and 2 

nays. To set trash rates to $18 for single trash can user, $23 for a 2-4 trash can user, $30 

for a heavy user, $50 for a 2-yard dumpster user, and $60 for a 3- yard dumpster user. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Discussed the water fund spreadsheet. The spreadsheet was in the packet. 

 Discussed the estimated vs the actual water taps.  

 Discussed the water base fee charge. 

 Discussed multiple items in the water expense spreadsheet.  

 Trustee Pattison suggested removing the spring repair line item. 

 Trustee Bear and Trustee Pattison are not in favor of raising the water rates.  

 The suggestions were to remove multiple expenses from the budget.  

 Discussed the cost to produce water for the community is $2.41 to produce 1000 

gallons of water.  

 

Motion by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Meck and carried with 5 ayes and 1 nay. 

To raise the water base rate across the board by $2.00 utilize the gallon rate starting at 

$2.40 as the new rate schedule.  

 

Discussed the operating cost of the sewer fund spreadsheets. The spreadsheet was in the 

packet. 

 The payroll is allocated as close to the actual. 

 Discussed the line item pertaining to debt reserves (3months) and the required 

amount that should be in there. 

 Discussed the water and sewer's combined debt reserve. 

 Discussed the sale of the Twin Lake ( old sewer plant) property - these are 

restricted funds which can only be used for capital improvement of the property. 

 Trustee Pattison would like to have the longevity next to the big-ticket items. 

 Trustee Pattison suggested moving payroll into the general fund instead of 

allocating from the water, sewer, and trash fund - Treasure King was not in favor 

of this suggestion. 

 Trustee Bear suggested reclaiming the Twin Lakes property. 

 The Mayor suggested applying for the Brownfield Grant to rehabilitate the Twin 

Lakes property. 

 Trustee Bear suggested posting pone any sewer rate increase for the time being. 

 

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear  X   

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison  X   

Mayor Bachran      

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison  X   

Mayor Bachran      

169



 

  

NOVEMBER 03, 2020 TOWN BOARD WORK SESSION MINUTES 3 

 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Knutson. The motion was withdrawn 

by Trustee Bear. To postpone any sewer rate for a max of 3-months into the new year. To 

gather information of what the reclamation consist of and how long the process will take, 

and how much money can be freed up and be put back into the reserve from the $58,000. 
 

 Discussion ensued by Trustee Bear to defer any action on raising the sewer rates. 

 Finance Officer stated that direction was needed to be given by the board on 

where to cut the cost of $79,000. 

 Discussed if the Twin Lakes property money of $58,000 can be used in the sewer 

fund in general - the money needs to be used only towards that property - if the 

property is sold the remaining money gets returned back to the lender.  

 Trustee Pattison suggested budgeting three-quarters of anticipated sales of sewer 

taps until March so that the sewer budger conforms. 

 Trustee Bear suggested to budget 8 out of town sewer taps so that the sewer 

budget conforms. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Knutson and unanimously carried to 

budget the sale of 8 sewer taps for 2021 and revisit the rate increase at the end of April 

2021 (4 months).  
 

 

Adjournment 
4. Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned by Mayor Bachran at 4:41 pm 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Amanda Mojarr0, Deputy Clerk                          Mary Bachran, Mayor  

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

170



 

November 18, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Mayor’s Report 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran 

 

 

 

171



 

November 18, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Finance & Personnel 

Governmental Affairs & Public Safety 

Public Works-Utilities-Facilities 

Tree Board 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: Trustee Johnson: 

Trustee Knutson: Trustee Meck: 

 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

172



 

November 18, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Adjournment 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: Trustee Johnson: 

Trustee Knutson: Trustee Meck: Trustee Pattison: Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

173


	Top
	1.	ASF 4 - Visitors & Guests
	ASF 4 - Visitors &amp; Guests

	2.	ASF 7 - Staff Reports
	ASF 7 - Staff Reports
	Blotter
	SCADA system update

	3.	ASF 8 -Treasurer's Report
	ASF 8 -Treasurer&#39;s Report
	Account Analysis Through Oct 2020
	Budget to Actual Through Oct 2020

	4.	ASF 9 - Disbursements
	ASF 9 - Disbursements
	Disbursements

	5.	2021 Budget Public Hearing
	ASF - 2021 Budget Public Hearing
	Budget Hearing

	6.	Clark's End Minor Subdivision
	ASF - Clarks End Minor Subdivision
	Clark's End_Admin Recommendation
	Minor Sub_App&Support Docs_Redacted
	Clarks End Plat Map
	Clarks End-Property Record Card - R008625
	Clarks End Review Posting

	7.	Charter Communication Franchise Agreement
	ASF - Charter Communication Franchise Agreement
	Charter-Paonia Revised Final

	8.	Ordinance 2020-10 - Regulation and Licensing of Marijuana Establishments
	ASF - 2020-10 MJ Ordinance
	Ordinance 2020-10 - Marijuana Establishments

	9.	2020 Sanitary Survey Follow-up
	ASF - 2020 Sanitary Survey Follow-up
	San Survey Administrative Update

	10.	Town Attorney Contract
	ASF - Town Attorney Contract
	TOP Professional Services Agreement

	11.	Town Administrator Six-Month Review – Evaluation Form and Timeline
	ASF - Town Administrator Six-Month Review – Initial Discussion
	Six Month Evaluation Form
	Three month evaluation Outcome
	Objective for Oct 2020 Eval

	12.	ASF - Consent Agenda
	ASF - Consent Agenda
	102720_wrksession_draftmin
	102720_DRAFTMIN
	110320_WrkSession_Draftmin

	13.	ASF 6 - Mayor's Report
	ASF 6 - Mayor&#39;s Report

	14.	ASF 10 -Committee Reports
	ASF 10 -Committee Reports

	15.	ASF 11 -Adjournment
	ASF 11 -Adjournment

	Bottom

